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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am Council

          3  Member Stanley Michels, Chairman of the

          4  Environmental Protection Committee, and I am with my

          5  Council Member Archie Spigner, Chairman of the

          6  Housing and Buildings Committee. I wear two hats

          7  today, I am Chairman of this Committee and also a

          8  member of the Housing and Buildings Committee, a

          9  proud member of the Housing and Buildings Committee.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: A senior

         11  member of the Housing and Buildings Committee.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: A senior member

         13  of the Housing and Buildings Committee.

         14                 I welcome all of you to this hearing

         15  on three important pieces of legislation dealing

         16  with grease deposited into the sewer system.

         17                 Intros Numbers 735 and 736 have been

         18  introduced in the Environmental Protection

         19  Committee, while Intro. No. 803 is pending in the

         20  Housing and Buildings Committee. Since they all deal

         21  with the same subject, it seems logical, and we try

         22  to do things logical around here, to have a joint

         23  hearing. I therefore extend a special welcome to the

         24  members of the Committee on Housing and Buildings.

         25  So, I am welcoming myself as well.
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          2                 Intro. No. 735 and Intro. 736 and

          3  Intro. No. 830 are all based on the premise that New

          4  York City needs the help of all of its residents and

          5  businesses to keep our sewer system running

          6  properly. We all know how important that is.

          7                 Cooking oil and grease from

          8  restaurants are wastes that the City's sewer system

          9  cannot handle, and I repeat cannot handle. They

         10  should not be discarded into the sewers, dumping

         11  grease fats and oils and clog the sewer lines

         12  causing back-ups and flooding that damages personal

         13  property and public property.

         14                 According to a December 2nd, 1999

         15  Queens Chronicle article, raw sewage backed up into

         16  Flushing Bay three times in November and December of

         17  1999 due to illegal disposal of grease from downtown

         18  Flushing restaurants and restaurant inspections and

         19  educational seminars by DEP have not reduced the

         20  problem. We have tried. Tougher regulations

         21  evidently must be created.

         22                 Currently, food service

         23  establishments are required by New York City to

         24  install grease traps, but repeated incidents and

         25  inspections have shown that many restaurants don't

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  have them or have inadequate ones, and that many

          3  pour grease directly down their drains, and that is

          4  terrible.

          5                 We will hear today from the

          6  Department of Environmental Protection how well the

          7  current rules address the problem and what kind of

          8  enforcement has been done in this area.

          9                 Three bills before us today call for

         10  "food service establishments" to install grease

         11  traps; authorize the suspension or revocation of the

         12  licenses of food service establishments that

         13  repeatedly fail to maintain grease traps, and

         14  require DEP to inspect grease traps, raise fines

         15  issued if the food service establishment is not in

         16  compliance with the law, and mandate that a licensed

         17  plumber maintain grease interceptors, which are also

         18  known as "grease traps." It also codifies the

         19  existing rules into law to enable the Department of

         20  Environmental Protection to better enforce and

         21  monitor these establishments.

         22                 Today is the first hearing on these

         23  bills, and I look forward to working with my

         24  co-chair Council Member Spigner, and this is the

         25  first time we have ever done it together, Co-Chair
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          2  Council Member Archie Spigner in evaluating today's

          3  testimony to determining how we should proceed in

          4  the future.

          5                 I want to pay particular compliments

          6  to the sponsors of the legislation of today, namely

          7  Council Member Harrison and Council Member Sabini,

          8  and I appreciate what you have done, so that is very

          9  good, he brought this to our attention.

         10                 We have with us not only Council

         11  Member Harrison and Sabini, we have Council Member

         12  Malave-Dilan and Council Member Nelson, and we will

         13  be joined by other Council Members from time to

         14  time, and many others will be coming.

         15                 Before I call our first witness, the

         16  New York City Department of Environmental

         17  Protection, we have Chairman Spigner, and we welcome

         18  your words.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         20  Chairman Michels.

         21                 I am Council Member Archie Spigner, I

         22  chair the Council's Committee on Housing and

         23  Buildings. As Council Member Michels has already

         24  explained, today both of our Committees are meeting

         25  jointly to consider three pieces of legislation that
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          2  all pertain to grease traps.

          3                 As I am well aware, from the

          4  complaints I get from restaurants and bakeries, we

          5  already have rules in effect that require grease

          6  traps, therefore, I am interested in hearing how

          7  well the current rules cover the problem of what

          8  kind of enforcement has been done in this area, and

          9  I wanted to take this opportunity to share with the

         10  members of the Committee my own experience.

         11                 I think I am probably the only

         12  Council Member who has made a citizens arrest, as it

         13  relates to clogging sewers and the abuse of our

         14  sewers. I want to compliment Mr. LaGrotta, and Mr.

         15  Greeley, and Mr. Sturcken on their response. If you

         16  made a complaint to the Department of Environmental

         17  Protection, they do respond.

         18                 Now, Mr. LaGrotta reminds me that we

         19  first met 12 years ago when I was driving to Grand

         20  Central Parkway and I made a right turn on Charcoal

         21  Road, those of you who are familiar with Jamaica

         22  Estates, and I saw one of the good citizens up there

         23  pouring crank case oil -- and how do I know it was

         24  crank case oil? Because his car was there and it was

         25  up on a jack, down the sewer hole. I got out and I
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          2  started to berate him, but I said, I will do better

          3  than that. I got back in my car, and I called DEP,

          4  and that is when Mr. LaGrotta and I first met, when

          5  I appeared in the Environmental Control Board as a

          6  witness in this instance. And we have got a

          7  conviction, right? And a fine.

          8                 Now, in recent weeks I had an

          9  occasion to again call on DEP, on Liberty Avenue and

         10  183rd Street, there was a string of concrete

         11  manufacturers, and an irresponsible business person

         12  had cut a hole in the base of the wall separating

         13  his plant with the sand and gravel and dirt and

         14  stuff, with the sidewalk. He had a pipe that just

         15  poured wastewater out into the gutter, into the

         16  so-called catchbasin, into the sewer. The sewer, Of

         17  all of the sewers along Liberty Avenue, clogged up.

         18  I called Mr. LaGrotta, how much did this guy get

         19  fined?

         20                 MR. LaGROTTA: I'm not sure.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: A substantial

         22  money fine. And I will tell you this, if you drive

         23  along Liberty Avenue and 183rd Street, on the North

         24  side of the street, you will see a concrete

         25  manufacturing company there, there are several, but
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          2  you won't see one drop of water in the gutter, all

          3  of a sudden they can do it right.

          4                 So, I would appeal to my fellow New

          5  Yorkers, if you see someone abusing our sewers and

          6  our catchbasins, please report them.

          7                 Particularly in districts like

          8  Southeast Queens where we have inadequate sewers to

          9  start out with, and when we get them clogged and

         10  backed up our basements are flooded, the damage is

         11  considerable, and it is all, a lot of it can be done

         12  with enforcement.

         13                 So, I want to learn today how we can

         14  increase the enforcement and to eliminate or reduce

         15  these infractions.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are joined by

         18  Council Member Provenzano and Council Member

         19  Carrion.

         20                 Gentlemen, the floor is yours.

         21                 MR. STURCKEN: Thank you. Good

         22  afternoon, both Chairmen, and members of the

         23  Council.

         24                 As Council Member Spigner explained,

         25  the infrastructure is very fragile, so although it
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          2  is not a particularly appealing subject at times,

          3  this is a very serious subject that we hope to

          4  enlighten the Council some more about.

          5                 My name is Charles Sturcken, the

          6  Chief of Staff and Special Counsel at the New York

          7  City Department of Environmental Protection, and

          8  with us at the table are Doug Greeley, who is the

          9  Deputy Commissioner for the Bureau of Water --

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Excuse me,

         11  Mr. Sturcken.

         12                 MR. STURCKEN: Yes.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council

         14  Member Michels reminded me that I did not make a

         15  citizen's arrest, I made a complaint.

         16                 MR. STRUCKEN: Nonethless, a stop.

         17                 Mr. LaGrotta who is here with us on

         18  my left is the Director of DEP's Industrial

         19  Pre-treatment Program, who will be happy to

         20  entertain any of the Council Members or any citizens

         21  complaint because they act on them fairly quickly.

         22                 On behalf of Commissioner Miele,

         23  thank you for this opportunity to testify concerning

         24  DEP's program to control the grease generated by

         25  homes and businesses, which can have serious
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          2  negative effects on the City's wastewater system.

          3                 Grease discharges clog City sewers

          4  causing sewer back-ups and increasing the need for

          5  sewer maintenance.

          6                 As I will explain in more detail

          7  shortly, abating grease generated by food service

          8  establishments and to a much lesser degree

          9  homeowners, has been a major concern for the last

         10  several years. It has also been a concern to Council

         11  Members Harrison and Sabini, among other elected

         12  officials, whose legislation amending Administrative

         13  Code provisions that regulate the use of public

         14  sewers will also be discussed.

         15                 First, let me discuss some background

         16  to this issue and due to the subject matter of this

         17  afternoon's hearing, I hope no members will plan on

         18  eating immediately following this hearing.

         19                 Grease is a significant problem to

         20  those of us in the sewer business, for which reason

         21  we appreciate this opportunity to discuss with you

         22  today.

         23                 However, I caution that a prolonged

         24  discussion on grease discharges may adversely affect

         25  one's appetite.
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          2                 Grease can have a serious long-term

          3  effect on the integrity of New York City's

          4  wastewater system. Grease can come from any one of

          5  the several different sources, either directly

          6  discharged from a sink, or indirectly as a result of

          7  a food service establishment operating without a

          8  grease trap or one that is improperly sized or

          9  improperly maintained.

         10                 For the uninitiated, a grease trap is

         11  also referred to as a grease interceptor. Described

         12  in the simplest terms, it is a container or a box

         13  connected to a plumbing fixture such as sinks. This

         14  container is constructed in place so as to prevent

         15  grease washed into a sink from flowing directly into

         16  a building's sewer connection.

         17                 The grease trap intercepts wastewater

         18  and allows the grease to separate from water because

         19  of their different densities.

         20                 The trap confines the grease but it

         21  allows water to flow out of the trap and into the

         22  building sewer connection.

         23                 If grease is not intercepted and

         24  removed from the wastewater before discharge to the

         25  City's sewers, the grease and water will separate
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          2  inside the sewer. The water will flow on to a

          3  sewerage treatment plant, but the grease will settle

          4  and congeal within that sewer.

          5                 The build up of grease over time can

          6  substantially diminish the available space within

          7  the sewer.

          8                 For example, in this chart behind me,

          9  there are pictures of a ten-inch sewer and they may

         10  greatly be reduced in diameter as the grease

         11  obstructs part of the pipe from being used.

         12                 Mr. Greeley is going to -- that is a

         13  10-inch diameter flowing cleanly at the top on the

         14  left side, the one-inch T on the bottom shows you

         15  the scale, and if a 10-inch pipe is constricted it

         16  can do a lot of damage to all of those along the

         17  line that feeds into that, and during heavy rains,

         18  the reduced diameter of the sewer due to a grease

         19  build up may cause a sewer to back up in their

         20  nearby resident's homes.

         21                 In addition, street flooding may

         22  result from sewers with a grease build-up.

         23                 As a result of sewer back-ups caused

         24  by grease discharges, home-owners can be forced to

         25  clean raw sewage at his or her basement, and then
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          2  have to file a claim with the City for reimbursement

          3  of cleaning expenses and property damage.

          4                 Grease has also caused blockages in

          5  infrastructure resulting in the unnecessary

          6  discharge of sewers into New York Harbor.

          7                 In addition to the sanitary and

          8  nuisance concerns that grease may cause to

          9  residents, New York City is also forced to expend

         10  additional financial resources to remove grease from

         11  the sewers, regulators, interceptors and wastewater

         12  pollution control plants.

         13                 The current requirements for grease

         14  disposal were established to prevent those types of

         15  problems from occurring by requiring buildings that

         16  prepare food to have grease traps.

         17                 In 1998, DEP revised and enlarged

         18  these regulations in response to grease problems

         19  that were becoming more prevalent.

         20                 As a result of these revisions, the

         21  regulations are much more explicit with respect to

         22  the design, sizing, maintenance and cleaning of

         23  grease traps.

         24                 While DEP prefers that the grease

         25  removed from traps be recycled, and since grease
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          2  recycling is as yet a fledgling industry in New York

          3  City, the current regulations do not specify any

          4  method of disposal.

          5                 However, DEP still endorses and

          6  encourages the recycling of grease as opposed to

          7  placing it in the commercial waste stream.

          8                 In May of 2000, DEP began a more

          9  intensive grease education and enforcement

         10  initiative, developed in response to a chronic

         11  problem of grease discharges to specific areas of

         12  the City.

         13                 DEP had been doing sporadic grease

         14  education and enforcement initiatives, but this was

         15  the first time DEP had prioritized 13 areas in the

         16  City where excess grease in the sewers was leading

         17  to an unusually high number of sewer back ups and

         18  other problems within the wastewater system, such as

         19  regulator malfunctions.

         20                 These 13 areas are a map for you on

         21  this chart, shown in the red/orange color, and I

         22  will repeat it for purposes of the record: In the

         23  Bronx it is West 231st Street between Bailey Avenue

         24  and Albany Crescent; Rosedale Avenue, between

         25  Westchester and Gleason Avenues.
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          2                 In Brooklyn, 86th Street, between Bay

          3  17th Street and Bay 40th Streets; Brighton Beach

          4  Avenue, between Brighton Beach and Neptune Avenue.

          5                 Coney Island Avenue between Brighton

          6  Beach and Neptune Avenue; and Manhattan Avenue

          7  between Greenpoint Avenue and Java Street.

          8                 In Manhattan, Canal Street, between

          9  Center and Lafayette Streets; West Broadway between

         10  Grand and Broome Streets; 7th Avenue between West

         11  54th Street and West 57th Streets; and West 56th

         12  Street, between Sixth and Seventh Avenues.

         13                 In Queens, Cross Bay Boulevard

         14  between 158th and 164th Avenues; Union Turnpike

         15  between 264th and 266th Streets; and lastly, Main

         16  Street in Flushing.

         17                 And I would like to add, the

         18  condition that was alluded to in your opening

         19  statements was one of the reasons that we are here

         20  today with Council Member Harrison and Sabini's

         21  bills.

         22                 No areas, as you will notice, were

         23  targeted in Staten Island, as DEP has not seen a

         24  pattern of sewer back-ups related to grease in the

         25  sewers. This could be attributed to a number of
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          2  factors, including there are newer sewers in the

          3  island and lower concentration of restaurants across

          4  the island.

          5                 To reduce the grease loadings in

          6  those areas, DEP staff developed a two-stage grease

          7  initiative.

          8                 The first stage is education and

          9  outreach, and the second stage is enforcement.

         10                 The first stage begins with a letter

         11  from Commissioner Miele to elected officials,

         12  community boards and civic organizations informing

         13  them of the importance of reducing grease discharges

         14  from restaurants and other food service

         15  establishments in the district.

         16                 Approximately two weeks after that

         17  letter goes out, DEP staff sends an informational

         18  mailing to every business in the target area that

         19  has a food service license from the Department of

         20  Health. The mailing includes the following

         21  materials:

         22                 - a letter informing the business of

         23  DEP's intention to inspect restaurants in the

         24  district for maintenance and installation of grease

         25  traps.
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          2                 - a pamphlet outlining the City

          3  regulations.

          4                 - a copy of the sewer use

          5  regulations.

          6                 I believe you have received most of

          7  those, starting with the letter, in the package.

          8                 The pamphlet has already been

          9  translated and distributed in Chinese, Russian and

         10  Korean, and we expect to have it soon in Spanish and

         11  in Hindi.

         12                 In connection with our education and

         13  outreach on grease abatement, I should mention that

         14  DEP had a booth at the New York Restaurant and Food

         15  Service show at the Jacob Javits Center last year,

         16  and we will be having a booth again this year, that

         17  is at the end of February I believe.

         18                 At the show, DEP highlights proper

         19  maintenance and use of grease traps, and displays

         20  the impacts of grease disposal on sewers by showing

         21  a video of the inside of a sewer, with grease

         22  blocking a significant portion of the sewer line.

         23                 We left the video home today, we

         24  wanted to spare the Committee from anything further

         25  graphic than we have here.
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          2                 DEP also does grease outreach and

          3  education at fairs, green markets, community boards,

          4  business associations and any other venue where DEP

          5  believes it would be helpful to provide educational

          6  materials on grease.

          7                 In addition, we have met with the

          8  Plumbing Foundation to assist us in the outreach

          9  process and we will be meeting with the American

         10  Society of Plumbing and Engineers shortly.

         11                 Approximately 30 days after the

         12  informational mailing has gone out, enforcement

         13  stage of the grease initiative begins.

         14                 Enforcement process consists of DEP

         15  staff conducting unscheduled inspections of

         16  restaurants and other food service establishments,

         17  and issuing Commissioner's orders and notices of

         18  violation.

         19                 The Commissioner's orders are issued

         20  when DEP staff determine that the food service

         21  establishment needs to install a grease trap or they

         22  need to upgrade an undersized grease trap.

         23                 Pursuant to the order, the

         24  establishment has 30 days to correct the problem.

         25  The order may be extended beyond the 30 days, if the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  food service establishment requests a reasonable

          3  time period for an extension, based on supplies or

          4  equipment that they are in the process of acquiring.

          5                 Upon reinspection, 30 days after

          6  issuance of the order if the food service

          7  establishment has not complied an NOV will be

          8  issued, returnable to the Environmental Control

          9  Board.

         10                 For failure to comply with an order

         11  DEP normally recommends a fine of $350 for the first

         12  offense, which may be mitigated to $250 if the

         13  business complies with the order by the hearing

         14  date.

         15                 For a second offense, DEP normally

         16  recommends a $500 fine for failure to comply with an

         17  order which may be mitigated to $350 if the

         18  respondent demonstrates compliance by the hearing

         19  date.

         20                 Third offenses for which mitigation

         21  is not allowed are recommended for a $750 fine. If

         22  the inspectors find a neglected grease trap on the

         23  initial inspection, he or she will issue an NOV for

         24  failure to maintain a grease trap. The Notices of

         25  Violation are also returnable to the Environmental
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          2  Control Board, and DEP recommends penalties of $350,

          3  $500 and $750 for the first, second and third

          4  offenses.

          5                 If an establishment has received

          6  multiple NOVs, DEP may seek a cease and desist order

          7  from the ECB and a prequota hearing will be held

          8  with the offender.

          9                 If the offender still does not comply

         10  after the pre-closure hearing, the Department will

         11  seek a cease and desist order from the ECB, and

         12  terminate water and sewer service to the facility.

         13                 Since Intro. 736 amends penalty

         14  provisions of the Administrative Code applicable to

         15  sewer use violations, at this point in my testimony

         16  I would like to address two of the introductions on

         17  today's agenda.

         18                 Intro. 736 would amend Section

         19  24-524(g) of the Administrative Code, which is the

         20  provision that authorizes criminal penalties for

         21  violations of regulations governing the use of

         22  public sewers. Section 24-524(g) now authorizes a

         23  minimum monetary fine of $250 for a criminal

         24  violation, a maximum monetary fine of $1,000, and

         25  imprisonment up to 30 days.
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          2                 Intro. 736 would raise the minimum to

          3  $400 and raise the maximum to $2,000. The penalty of

          4  imprisonment would remain at 30 days.

          5                 In addition, Intro. 736 would add

          6  language to 24-524(g) authorizing the revocation of

          7  a license or permit issued to food service

          8  establishments as a penalty for a criminal violation

          9  of the sewer use provisions of the Code.

         10                 Although DEP supports increasing the

         11  criminal penalties specified in the code, it is for

         12  reasons unrelated to grease discharges.

         13                 In fact, DEP has rarely, if ever,

         14  requested criminal penalties in connection with a

         15  grease discharge.

         16                 Civil penalties, the power of ECB to

         17  issue a cease and desist order and actual shut-offs

         18  of service has generally sufficed for enforcement

         19  prohibitions against grease discharges.

         20                 However, the civil and criminal

         21  penalty provisions in the Administrative Code that

         22  apply to violations and grease discharge

         23  restrictions also apply to violations of

         24  prohibitions on the discharge of petroleum products,

         25  PCBs, and heavy metals into the sewers.
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          2                 With all due respect to any resident

          3  that has suffered a sewer back-up because a

          4  restaurant does not have a clean grease trap or any

          5  grease trap at all, the chemical discharges pose a

          6  much greater threat to the public, to our workers

          7  and to our treatment plants and to our surrounding

          8  waters than grease discharges. For that reason, DEP

          9  proposes that the maximum criminal penalty in

         10  Section 24-524(g) be increased to $10,000 and 90

         11  days imprisonment, so as to create a greater

         12  disincentive to industrial polluters.

         13                 The criminal penalties in the

         14  Administrative Code applicable to sewer use

         15  violations are not sufficient to deter the most

         16  egregious violators. For that reason, when DEP has

         17  determined that there is a persistent willful

         18  attempt to bypass the sewer use regulations, DEP

         19  forwards such cases for criminal investigation to

         20  the United States Environmental Protection Agency's

         21  Criminal Investigation Division, or to the Office of

         22  the New York State Attorney General who prosecute

         23  the case based upon criminal violations of

         24  applicable state or federal law.

         25                 State and federal prosecutors have at
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          2  their disposal criminal sanctions which exceed the

          3  penalties now authorized in the Administrative Code.

          4  A recent example of this is an electroplater in

          5  Manhattan that bypassed pre-treatment equipment in

          6  their facility and discharged wastewater containing

          7  various potentially dangerous chemicals in

          8  concentrations far greater than allowed under our

          9  sewer use regulations.

         10                 When DEP inspectors determined that

         11  this willful violation had gone well beyond

         12  accidental discharge or lack of knowledge regarding

         13  the regulations, the Department forwarded this case

         14  to the United States EPA's Criminal Investigation

         15  Division for Prosecution.

         16                 The electroplater had attempted to

         17  circumvent the regulations entirely. The USEPA can

         18  seek larger criminal penalties and seek felony

         19  charges as they did in this electroplater case.

         20                 The USEPA, the New York State

         21  Attorney General's Office, and to a much lesser

         22  degree, the District Attorneys, are the ones who

         23  conduct the criminal investigation of environmental

         24  regulations.

         25                 If the criminal penalties in the
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          2  Administrative Code were increased, DEP might have

          3  to depend less often on State and Federal government

          4  for their assistance in prosecuting larger

          5  violators.

          6                 Although we agree with Intro. 736,

          7  the sponsors may not realize that as a practical

          8  matter, increasing criminal penalties proposed by

          9  the legislation would not affect enforcement or

         10  approve compliance on grease discharges since

         11  criminal penalties are rarely used for that purpose.

         12                 DEP also suggests changing the civil

         13  penalties for violations of sewer discharge

         14  restrictions, but, again, this penalty change is

         15  intended to improve enforcement against the

         16  discharges of industrial waste, not grease.

         17                 The civil penalty for violation of

         18  sewer use prohibition ranges from $50 to $1,000, in

         19  our view raising the minimum penalty amount is not

         20  an effective way to approve compliance.

         21                 A higher minimum penalty would in

         22  effect treat a person who has poured a dish of

         23  grease into a catchbasin, the same as a large

         24  commercial establishment that spills a large amount

         25  of oil into the sewer.
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          2                 A higher minimum penalty also

          3  penalizes establishments who found through their own

          4  independent audit problems that need to be corrected

          5  and who informed DEP of the results and of their

          6  intention to comply with City regulation. We can

          7  explain that further in questioning when it comes to

          8  other industrial polluters.

          9                 An amendment to the Administrative

         10  Code which lowers the minimum penalty for violations

         11  of sewer use restrictions to zero and the raises the

         12  maximum penalty to $10,000, would improve

         13  enforcement in two ways. It would deter violators by

         14  authorizing DEP to request much more severe

         15  financial restrictions than the code now allows, and

         16  it would encourage compliance by allowing DEP to

         17  impose a zero penalty on those establishments who

         18  inform us of defects in their pretreatment system

         19  and make good faith attempts to correct the

         20  problems.

         21                 This proposal is consistent with

         22  certain USEPA enforcement strategies in the area of

         23  pretreatment programs.

         24                 The use of a 0 to $10,000 penalty

         25  range has also been discussed with our colleagues on
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          2  the pollution prevention citizens advisory Committee

          3  to encourage us to pursue this proposal. We hope the

          4  Council will be willing to discuss this proposal

          5  with us, as well as our proposal regarding criminal

          6  penalties.

          7                 Regarding Intro. 735, DEP is

          8  concerned that the legislation creates a prohibition

          9  on grease discharges in the Administrative Code,

         10  that is narrower than similar provisions in the DEP

         11  regulations.

         12                 As mentioned earlier in my testimony,

         13  in 1998 DEP extensively revised its regulations

         14  concerning grease traps contained in the rules of

         15  the City of New York.

         16                 In those regulations, codified at 15

         17  RCNY 19-11, DEP requires grease interceptors on

         18  sinks, drains and other plumbing fixtures but not

         19  limited to "restaurants, kitchens, cafeterias...

         20  Supermarket food processing areas or other

         21  non-residential establishments where grease may be

         22  introduced into the drainage system.

         23                 Although it may be unintentional,

         24  Intro. 735 appears to require grease inceptors only

         25  at food service establishments, which is defined as
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          2  a place where food is provided directly to the

          3  consumer. That definition, therefore, excludes

          4  places such an airline commissary or a meat

          5  processing facility where food is not directly sold

          6  to a consumer, but is sold to the airline or a

          7  middle person who then provides the food directly to

          8  the consumer.

          9                 The legislation creates a narrower

         10  universe for enforcement and is therefore

         11  inconsistent with DEP's regulations in 15 RCNY

         12  19-11.

         13                 As long as the legislation does not

         14  compromise DEP's ability to enforce its regulations,

         15  DEP has no objections to Intro. 735. However, if the

         16  legislation is simply intended to recreate the

         17  Administrative Code, in the Administrative Code the

         18  prohibitions on grease discharge that now reside in

         19  the rules of the City of New York, the legislation

         20  may not be accomplishing any real goal in abating

         21  grease discharges.

         22                 Finally, DEP has a few comments on

         23  Intro. 830, which amends Reference Standard 16 of

         24  Title 27 of the Administrative Code.

         25                 The bill requires building owners to
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          2  have grease interceptors in their buildings to

          3  execute a "contract or other agreement" for the

          4  maintenance of grease interceptors.

          5                 The bill further requires licensed

          6  master plumbers to perform or supervise the

          7  maintenance specified in the contract or other

          8  agreement. Of these two requirements, it is the

          9  second one that causes DEP the greatest concern.

         10  Maintaining a grease interceptor is often as simple

         11  as emptying it. A building owner should have the

         12  discretion to identify the personnel who are

         13  responsible for routine maintenance of the grease

         14  interceptor as already required in the RCNY.

         15                 Restricting to licensed plumbers the

         16  universe of persons authorized to supervise the

         17  maintenance of grease interceptors we feel is

         18  unnecessary and burdensome.

         19                 As far as requiring building owners

         20  to have a contract or agreement for the maintenance

         21  of a grease interceptor, DEP rules already require

         22  maintenance of the grease interceptor even if these

         23  rules do not specifically require a contract or

         24  other payment.

         25                 Obviously, better maintenance of
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          2  grease interceptors would make DEP's job of

          3  operating the sewer system easier.

          4                 For that reason DEP is willing to

          5  discuss additional requirements that would improve

          6  interceptor maintenance.

          7                 In DEP's view, the appropriate

          8  response to the issue of reducing grease discharges

          9  from restaurants and other businesses that prepare

         10  food is a   combination of additional enforcement

         11  targeted at the problem locations, and public

         12  outreach and education concerning the appropriate

         13  methods of handling grease discharges.

         14                 The violators in many cases are

         15  unaware of the regulations and need to be educated

         16  on proper grease disposal.

         17                 DEP's Grease Education and

         18  Enforcement Initiative strategy employs these two

         19  responses.

         20                 Although DEP is very aware of the

         21  need to abate sewer back-ups that are caused, at

         22  least in part, by illegal grease disposal, amending

         23  the criminal penalty schedules, or simply

         24  replicating in the Administrative Code existing

         25  requirements from the rules of the City of New York
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          2  is probably not the most effective response.

          3                 We believe that changes in the civil

          4  penalty schedule may be more helpful in enforcing

          5  compliance with the provisions of the Administrative

          6  Code with respect to the use of the public sewers.

          7                 We look forward to discussing the

          8  matter further with the Council and thank you for

          9  the opportunity to testify, and we will be happy to

         10  answer any questions.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As we said at

         13  the outset, this is our first hearing, and we are

         14  very pleased that you have come up with a very

         15  well-thought-out statement, and the fact that you

         16  are taking the legislation very seriously, and I

         17  think that the responses and this Committee will

         18  certainly look forward to working with you, because

         19  I think there is an agreement there is need for

         20  legislation here, it is just a question of the

         21  nature of the legislation.

         22                 And I think with the cooperation of

         23  the sponsors and this Committee and the Council, we

         24  will be willing to sit down with the agency and work

         25  out what has to be done, because we recognize the
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          2  problem.

          3                 I haven't started asking my

          4  questions, but do you want to say something?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Just as an

          6  aside --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

          8  Harrison.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Just as an

         10  aside, on the last page of your comments, the

         11  violators in many cases are unaware of the many

         12  regulations and need to be educated on proper grease

         13  disposal, is very sanctimonious, but I must suggest

         14  to you that it is also a convenient out for people

         15  who have been preached to, talked to, given

         16  literature, had their own meetings of the industry

         17  and still plead ignorant and it is a cop out.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Ignorance of the

         19  law is no excuse. That's the precept.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: You are

         21  right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In this

         23  democracy.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: It is not

         25  even ignorance of the law, it's just plain up yours.
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          2                 MR. STURCKEN: Or in our case down

          3  ours. But we take your comments very seriously

          4  because we have been out to the Council Member's

          5  district many times, and we believe at least since,

          6  and prior to a little bit, since May of 2000, this

          7  enforcement strategy will have some effect.

          8                 I think it is too early to tell

          9  whether or not Deputy Commissioner Greeley's

         10  operation has seen any results from the enforcement.

         11  But it is trickling in and we think it is going to

         12  be successful.

         13                 Flushing, and Main Street in the

         14  Flushing, an area we will be back to many times.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Before we get to

         16  some questions in relation to the legislation, you

         17  did give us a pamphlet from the agency which I

         18  imagine you disseminated widely so the people should

         19  know that even though you are maybe not under the

         20  jurisdiction of these laws, it is not proper to

         21  individuals in their homes to dump cooking oil,

         22  poultry fat and grease in the kitchen sink or toilet

         23  bowl, and there is a safe way of doing that, because

         24  that also contributes to the build-up of grease. So

         25  that is very important, if you would like to comment
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          2  on that, please do.

          3                 MR. STURCKEN: Thank you. We have

          4  distributed that to as many residential areas that

          5  we can. We do it through the New York City Housing

          6  Authority, we do that through out outreach, and I

          7  think we sent them to any Council member who wants

          8  them a good supply, every community board receives

          9  bundles of them. That is for the individual New

         10  Yorker, and we put them in the New York City water

         11  bills for the individual to stop polluting and

         12  throwing grease down the sewers. It's very

         13  important. Along with that chip clip that you see in

         14  your pack, we give those out at fairs and to anybody

         15  who needs them. We have plenty of them for your

         16  constituents.

         17                 We recently won an award last year

         18  for that chip clip as a small innovative thing to

         19  get people thinking, because you put it under your

         20  refrigerator, and we really would like to educate

         21  people about putting any kind of grease down their

         22  sink drain in the home.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's very

         24  good, and I think it is something you should do,

         25  especially when you become poetic and you now rhyme
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          2  drain with the gain.

          3                 MR. STURCKEN: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Anything that

          5  works will do.

          6                 And in that line, I am just

          7  wondering, is there some way we are going to be able

          8  to tell whether there has been an improvement in the

          9  grease, by what is the standard, and say in a year

         10  if the work we are doing, what we are doing here is

         11  effective, how are you going to be able to tell?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Good

         13  afternoon, both Chairman and members. My name is

         14  Doug Greeley, Deputy Commissioner of Water and Sewer

         15  Operations.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You were fully

         17  identified by Mr. Spigner.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Pardon

         19  me?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Go on.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: I have

         22  two somewhat anecdotal incidences to share with you.

         23  We are a little bit hamstrung because we are

         24  converting over work order management systems, we

         25  are transitioning one work order system that could
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          2  not print reports to another one where we don't have

          3  very much history but we can do reports.

          4                 Two areas that we looked at were 86th

          5  Street and Brooklyn, which is one of the larger

          6  chronic grease areas between Bay 29th and Bay 31st

          7  Street, and over the course of April '99 to August

          8  of 2000, we had 26 who were back-ups attributable to

          9  grease, it works out to one and a half back-ups per

         10  month, and since September we have only had four

         11  complaints, that works out to less than one a month.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You could make

         13  that diagnosis by actually having to go down and

         14  figure it out so you know that grease is causing the

         15  problem?

         16                 MR. STURCKEN: Correct.

         17                 Another one that we looked at, which

         18  was in the photographs, is Cross Bay Boulevard

         19  between 158th and 164th Avenues. We have seen a

         20  reduction there from three and a quarter sewer

         21  back-ups a month down to one and a quarter sewer

         22  back-ups a month. Some of it is attributable to the

         23  fact that we have not had a significant amount of

         24  rain, but we have done quite a bit of education and

         25  enforcement. The 86th Street does correlate with
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          2  what Bob LaGrotta's enforcement people have been

          3  doing.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: By way of

          5  enforcement, when you find a violator, does the

          6  violation go to the owner of the property, or to the

          7  owner of the establishment, if they are separate

          8  ownerships?

          9                 MR. LaGROTTA: Robert LaGrotta. The

         10  violations are issued to the restaurant owner.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The owner of the

         12  establishment itself?

         13                 MR. LaGROTTA: The owner of the

         14  establishment.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How many

         16  inspectors do we have that are devoted, whose sole

         17  job is to inspect for these type of violations.

         18                 MR. LaGROTTA: We have six full-time

         19  field inspectors.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For the entire

         21  City?

         22                 MR. LaGROTTA: Yes, it is. One working

         23  supervisor and one computer aid that does office

         24  support.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how many
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          2  inspections can they do in a day?

          3                 MR. LaGROTTA: It varies, whether they

          4  are doing an initial inspection or if they are doing

          5  reinspections.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let's say an

          7  initial inspection.

          8                 MR. LaGROTTA: They usually do about

          9  six a day. We do it geographically, and they work in

         10  a geographic area.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If they are

         12  doing follow-up inspections, how many can they do in

         13  a day?

         14                 MR. LaGROTTA: Ten.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how many

         16  establishments are there in the City of New York

         17  that require inspections?

         18                 MR. LaGROTTA: It is approximately

         19  19,000.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, would you

         21  say that they are short handed, in the work that you

         22  are doing? Don't you think you need more inspectors?

         23                 MR. LaGROTTA: We do have other staff

         24  in the industrial pre-treatment program that we can

         25  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The ones you

          3  just told me about are the ones that do exclusively

          4  grease?

          5                 MR. LaGROTTA: That's correct. They

          6  are solely dedicated --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Others that do

          8  dual functions?

          9                 MR. LaGROTTA: There are others that

         10  do the functions, but they each have other assigned

         11  duties also.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how many of

         13  those?

         14                 MR. LaGROTTA: Well, the total staff

         15  in the pre-treatment program is 72 persons.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Seventy-two. And

         17  that includes the six who are devoted?

         18                 MR. LaGROTTA: That's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In light of the

         20  problem, and there seems to be an extensive problem,

         21  especially into Queens, I guess, do you think that

         22  is adequate, in order to do the job that you have to

         23  do?

         24                 MR. LaGROTTA: Since we have initiated

         25  the program, we have been able to cover all 13 areas
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          2  at least with one inspection and we are now doing

          3  the follow-up inspections in those areas. So, by

          4  concentrating our resources where the major problems

          5  are we think we have been effective in getting out

          6  to those areas.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, right now

          8  you are concentrating on the areas where you have

          9  already determined there has been a build-up of

         10  grease in the sewers and it is causing a back-up of

         11  the sewers?

         12                 MR. LaGROTTA: That's correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you

         14  contemplate a time where you will do -- and is it

         15  always the same areas, or do you find other areas

         16  cropping up that you didn't contemplate?

         17                 MR. LaGROTTA: Our initial focus has

         18  been in the areas that our sewer maintenance

         19  personnel identified to the 13 areas listed in the

         20  statement and shown on the map.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how long has

         22  it been those 13 areas, without adding a new area?

         23                 MR. LaGROTTA: How long --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have been

         25  joined by Kathryn Freed of New York, who is a new
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          2  member of this Committee, and we want to welcome

          3  her.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: The newest

          5  oldest member.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The newest

          7  oldest member of the Committee, and I want you to

          8  note that Council Member Provenzano, who is no

          9  longer a member of this Committee, is still here, so

         10  we look at her as a member ex-officio. And Council

         11  Member Leffler is here from Queens, probably the

         12  oldest member of the Committee. And Council Member

         13  Fiala was here, and Robles was here also.

         14                 Now you have had additional time to

         15  answer the question.

         16                 MR. LaGROTTA: I wish I could give you

         17  an exact answer. They have entered our collective

         18  memory of some of them have been discussed as long

         19  as I have been with DEP, which is close to 30 years.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Mr.

         21  Chairman?

         22                 MR. LaGROTTA: We have other locations

         23  that come and go, but for the most part, these are

         24  chronic, hard core grease locations.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The point I am
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          2  making is, it is great if you have those 13 areas

          3  where you know there is a problem. Seeing that there

          4  are other areas in the City and we don't want them

          5  to be ignored, and I am sure you are not going to

          6  ignore them, but they should also have inspectors

          7  out there at least perhaps for preventive

          8  maintenance.

          9                 Now, let me ask you this: You have

         10  had an opportunity to do what has to be done here,

         11  and you notice there has been problems with those

         12  sewers and there have been damage done as a result,

         13  flooding and such; could you give us an idea, some

         14  ball park figure, of the cost to the City as a

         15  result of the violations you have here? A way of

         16  getting across, because people understand dollars

         17  and cents, how much do we have to spend in order to

         18  be able to remedy a situation that shouldn't happen?

         19                 MR. LaGROTTA: I can get you a figure

         20  which we estimate, obviously, of the cost of

         21  maintaining the sewer system.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But that's not

         23  the case.

         24                 MR. LaGROTTA: I don't know if I could

         25  parcel out those things --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is the

          3  extra cost of having to maintain a sewer system

          4  which gets clogged up as a result of grease which is

          5  put in there in violation of the law?

          6                 MR. La GROTTA: Well, maybe if Deputy

          7  Commissioner Greeley walks you through how his

          8  crews, once we get the complaint, back-ups and --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am looking for

         10  dollar and cents --

         11                 MR. LaGROTTA: How many person hours

         12  it takes to then clean out a sewer.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. Well, you

         14  can figure it out and give it to us. Do you think it

         15  is a substantial amount of money? Millions? Give us

         16  your best guesstimate.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: If I

         18  would have to give you a per incident dollar and

         19  cent, I would say about $450 per event.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How many events

         21  are there over the years?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: If I

         23  came in with a ball park percentage of the number of

         24  SBUs that were related to grease, I would say 20

         25  percent, that works out to be 5,000 per year.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, 5,000 times

          3  --

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Times

          5  $450.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that's a

          7  year?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's a year.

         10                 Mr. Leffler said $2.5 million a year.

         11  That's an extraordinary expense. And we are not even

         12  talking about the damage that it has done to private

         13  property, as a result of this, so we are not talking

         14  about something that is inconsequential.

         15                 Now, you have given our fines and you

         16  have talked about repeat offenders. Do you really

         17  believe that the work that you have done, the

         18  inspectors are doing their job for the most part,

         19  and there are just some exceptions that we are

         20  trying to go after with this legislation?

         21                 MR. LaGROTTA: We found that during

         22  the initial inspections, we had about 73 percent of

         23  the facilities needed to upgrade their grease traps.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how many

         25  comply after the initial inspection?
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          2                 MR. LaGROTTA: We are getting about a

          3  92 percent compliance. And then we go back again to

          4  reinspect that eight percent that has not complied.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right.

          6                 Mr. Spigner.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman.

          9                 Just first I wanted to legitimatize

         10  Council Member Provenzano, she is now an ex-officio

         11  member. This is a joint Committee hearing of --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: She is an

         13  ex-officio member of the DEP Committee. We know that

         14  she is a full-time and a regular member of the

         15  Housing and Buildings Committee.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And to the

         17  bonafide members of the Environmental Protection,

         18  the ex-officio members of the Housing and Buildings

         19  Committee.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, no. It is

         21  the other way around.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Anyway, thank

         23  you, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 I was interested in a comment raised

         25  by Chairman Michels as it relates to a mixed-use
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          2  building where there is a restaurant on the ground

          3  floor, and you issue a violation to the restaurant

          4  as opposed to the other 30 or 40 units that could be

          5  on top. How you distinguish or determine the grease

          6  from the restaurant as opposed to the residentials?

          7                 MR. LaGROTTA: When we go into a

          8  restaurant we inspect the specific equipment inside

          9  that restaurant, and we check each sink, each floor

         10  drain for the appropriately-sized grease trap and

         11  then we open the grease traps and check if it is

         12  properly maintained.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, you could

         14  specifically identify the source of the problem.

         15                 MR. LaGROTTA: That's correct.

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         17                 Now, as it relates to your six

         18  inspectors, you should also inform the Committee

         19  that they are multilingual bilingual, that they are

         20  able to explain the process in a variety of

         21  languages or dialects; is that correct?

         22                 MR. LaGROTTA: That's correct,

         23  Councilman. We have a number of inspectors that

         24  speak multiple languages, and if we have a

         25  communications problem we try to assign an inspector
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          2  that can communicate in a native language to assist

          3  in compliance.

          4                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Sturcken,

          5  if you can quickly recap why more is less in terms

          6  of higher fines is not the way to go, I would

          7  greatly appreciate that.

          8                 MR. STURCKEN: In our civil penalty

          9  schedule now before the Environmental Control Board

         10  in the civil penalty, we are restricted to, I think

         11  it is $50 to $1,000. So, if we had a zero to $10,000

         12  to capture both the people who are polluting with

         13  grease, and all the other industrial more, let's

         14  say, toxic polluters, I think it would suffice,

         15  because we would like to get more fines out of the

         16  violators.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In ECB do you

         18  now have any zero to any number?

         19                 MR. STURCKEN: No, it's $50.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, you would

         21  say maybe 50 to 10,000?

         22                 MR. STURCKEN: Well, as I was

         23  mentioning, the zero comes from the fact that, and

         24  it is not intended for the grease violators, but for

         25  those violators who would dump, or are in the
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          2  business say like electroplating, or the jewelry

          3  business comes to mind, chemical plants, they have

          4  with us, they have certain permits that they get

          5  from us, and to have -- they come in and they say,

          6  you know, our process has changed a little, we are

          7  going to change it, so it gives us the ability to

          8  sort of, if they rapidly comply with new processes,

          9  they have sort of an auditing process which we

         10  follow which the federal government has laid out,

         11  but maybe Mr. LaGrotta, again, it is not for the

         12  grease violator, it is for the large industrial

         13  plant that may be discharging into the sewer. They

         14  are entitled to discharge, but they have to

         15  discharge pursuant to permit.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: The

         17  concept was is that if an industrial facility

         18  conducted a self-audit where they went in and did a

         19  self-audit of their facility and identified

         20  something that needed correction, and they, in

         21  essence, turned themselves in and agreed and

         22  immediately corrected that violation, that there

         23  would be a potential to mitigate that fine down to

         24  zero.

         25                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I think you
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          2  are clear, I understand from your testimony that it

          3  does not require a plumber to maintain or to dump or

          4  empty these contraptions.

          5                 I will prefer to wait, your position

          6  is clear?

          7                 MR. STURCKEN: We didn't want to

          8  restrict it only to licensed plumbers.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But you think

         10  if someone wants to hire a licensed plumber, that's

         11  okay?

         12                 MR. STURCKEN: There is no problem

         13  with that at all, no. Absolutely not. And I think

         14  maybe somewhere in the restaurant industry and I

         15  think we will be hearing from them today, they

         16  probably do have plumbers who do this. But, again,

         17  we believe that it shouldn't be restricted to

         18  licensed plumbers, but just good maintenance, and we

         19  work with the restaurant associations and with the

         20  plumbers to fashion some kind of mechanism so we

         21  could strengthen routine maintenance.

         22                 Right now it is left up to the owner

         23  of the establishment.

         24                 The grease interceptor or trap, it is

         25  fairly easy. It is not a very nice job to do but it
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          2  is just like cleaning out something in your drain

          3  that is clogged. It is not pleasant but in fresh

          4  food establishments and kitchens, it is messy, as

          5  you can see. But if you keep it clean, you won't

          6  have to do a messy job so often to save the sewers.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: My final

          8  question is a comment. On these Notices of

          9  Violations, I think you have a fairly liberal, not

         10  liberal, a realistic schedule, 30 days, but you

         11  can't do it in 30 days because of the lack of

         12  materials or man or woman power or expertise, we

         13  come back to you and you will extend again a

         14  reasonable time to come in. So, you are not

         15  unmindful of the problems that one might encounter.

         16  What has been the amount of noncompliance. When do

         17  you come down and say, look, we have given you 30,

         18  we have given you another 30, now you clearly don't

         19  intend to comply so therefore we are going to have

         20  to depend on you.

         21                 MR. LaGROTTA: What we do, Councilman,

         22  is we go back after we issue the violation, we go

         23  back again and do a reinspection and issue a second

         24  violation. Usually if the facility does appear at

         25  the Environmental Control Board, we have an
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          2  opportunity to have our Counsel try to work with the

          3  owner or their representative to encourage them to

          4  comply, and that sometimes is effective.

          5                 If not, we continue to reinspect and

          6  issue additional NOVs and we will go back on a

          7  weekly basis, if needed.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, your goal

          9  is to achieve compliance, as opposed to fines and

         10  penalties and all these other measures that result

         11  from noncompliance?

         12                 MR. LaGROTTA: Absolutely.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And I support

         14  that.

         15                 Okay, let's go to the members now.

         16  Council Member Harrison, followed by Council Member

         17  Sabini, Councilwoman Freed, Council Member Leffler,

         18  Council Member Provenzano, in that order.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: I would just

         20  like to make a couple of comments that caused me

         21  personal distress about the way the hearing is being

         22  conducted, it sounds very, you know, very

         23  unrealistic to me.

         24                 In Flushing, the question of grease

         25  in the sewers is something that is a tangible
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          2  problem that affects the riders who come in to use

          3  the subway, number 7 IRT subway train, 23 different

          4  bus lines, 100,000 people going through Flushing who

          5  are in the warm weather, in the hot weather,

          6  subjected to the stench of sewer dirt in the

          7  catchbasins to the degree that we get calls in the

          8  office, people are puking, they are throwing up. No,

          9  this is not to laugh. This is a thing we are living

         10  with, and it is not an academic discussion that we

         11  are here to hear, and I think this has nothing to do

         12  with the agency or the Council, our Council, I think

         13  it is an imbomination to consider that 72 inspectors

         14  can care for 19,008 places to work. I mean, that

         15  defies anybody's sense at all, and it is a perfect

         16  example of what happens to downsizing, and I think

         17  the City can never recover any kind of quality of

         18  life for the people who live in Flushing, for the

         19  people who travel through Flushing, or the people

         20  who want to come and shop. I think it is an economic

         21  disaster, and beyond that, I just want to indicate

         22  that we already have paid through the nose because

         23  of the condensed and the hardened fat in grease in

         24  the pipes, because not too long ago, we had such a

         25  situation that the activity we were trying to
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          2  maintain to clear up the stench from the Flushing

          3  river and we had installed some kind of flap-flaps

          4  that would stop the grease from going through,

          5  everything was so solidified that we couldn't even

          6  use that equipment, which the City had put money,

          7  many millions of dollars into upgrading, so it's not

          8  an academic question about what we do with 72 poor

          9  workers who have to cover 19,000 areas, I mean this

         10  is costing big bucks to the City of New York and it

         11  is imposing very severe hardship on the residents of

         12  New York. And when we talk about wanting to maintain

         13  a quality of life and the middle class taxpaying

         14  base in the City to maintain ourselves as a City, is

         15  this the way we treat our people?

         16                 I really feel I want more out of this

         17  hearing than just to hear a recycle of figures and

         18  facts. You know, it's not a dead issue. It's a very

         19  live problem that we want to find a solution to, and

         20  since we are not the only place where that exists in

         21  the City of New York, I don't know how you folks can

         22  keep your heads on straight with all the

         23  responsibility, all the work you have to do and your

         24  inability to cover. I really respect you, but I am

         25  frustrated as the devil.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            54

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Thank you, Mr. Spigner.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You want more

          4  inspection, and more enforcement in your district?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Oh,

          6  absolutely.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I will

          8  tell you, I think if you call Mr. LaGrotta or Mr.

          9  Greeley or Mr. Sturcken and pinpoint an area --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: How often

         11  will you come to Flushing?

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: My experience

         13  with them as been that they respond.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER HARRISON: Okay. I

         15  expect you to respond because I hear from my leader

         16  that you are very responsive people.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes, that is

         18  my experience.

         19                 John Sabini.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 Good afternoon. We pride ourselves as

         23  responsive people in the 21st Council District,

         24  that's why DEP is located there, but I echo Council

         25  Member Harrison's concern that this is a real
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          2  serious issue, and the folks at the witness table

          3  have been very helpful on this, but let's look at

          4  the gravity really of the problem, because I think

          5  that while the problem, the conditions were

          6  discussed, I want to share with my colleagues what

          7  we did.

          8                 Being on the Environmental Protection

          9  Committee, I asked DEP to survey food

         10  establishments, restaurants, in four distinct areas,

         11  Roosevelt Avenue in Woodside and Jackson Heights,

         12  Queens Boulevard in Elmhurst, 37th Avenue in Jackson

         13  Heights and Broadway in Elmhurst. Seventy-three

         14  licensed eating establishments were inspected, there

         15  were 88 commissioner orders and 27 notices of

         16  violations.

         17                 Each and every eating establishment

         18  that was inspected had something wrong. The reason

         19  we inspected those areas, we have had floods there,

         20  and Council Member Harrison has had floods in her

         21  district, Council Member Freed has had floods in her

         22  district, and it seems that the restaurants involved

         23  plead ignorance, and we need education and I think

         24  it was outlined, but at the same time we need

         25  enforcement, because I don't think people have taken
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          2  the issue seriously enough.

          3                 When you issue these notices, how

          4  often do you follow up if none of us call you? If

          5  you just issue a Notice of Violation, what is the

          6  follow-up procedure?

          7                 MR. LaGROTTA: All Notices of

          8  Violation are personally served on the owner or

          9  manager facility establishment, and we follow up

         10  every notice of violation issued usually within 30

         11  days. We do a repeat inspection of that facility and

         12  we continue to reinspect the facility until we find

         13  compliance.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And what is

         15  the compliance rate on the first revisit?

         16                 MR. LaGROTTA: On the first revisit

         17  for installation of equipment, the compliance rate

         18  is at 92 percent, and on the reinspection for the

         19  maintenance, we are having a 99 percent plus

         20  compliance on the reinspections.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: But you have

         22  already testified that your number of inspectors are

         23  such that, you know, you are doing this only when a

         24  problem results.

         25                 Now, one of the tragedies of this
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          2  regarding food serving establishments is that the

          3  flood they cause could be their own, and the damage

          4  they cause could be to their own business, which is

          5  really tragic. The ounce of prevention that they

          6  could meet out by having a working grease trap and

          7  having it maintained by a proper licensed plumber

          8  would result perhaps in them keeping their business.

          9                 We had an incident last week, and

         10  Commissioner Greeley is aware of this, where a

         11  funeral parlor in my district, 73 years in existence

         12  had their first back-up and DEP determined the

         13  partial reason was grease. So, it seems to be

         14  increasing, despite the fact that we have education.

         15  And I am delighted you won an award for this. Who

         16  issues these awards? Is it a black tie affair?

         17                 The fact is the local eating

         18  establishments are improperly releasing grease into

         19  the sewers is not realized until it is too late.

         20                 Do you have the ability to

         21  proactively gauge this, I know you have these

         22  cameras that go down in the sewers, but is there

         23  some other electronic device that can allow you to

         24  figure out this is going to happen in a particular

         25  area?
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          2                 MR. STURCKEN: I think there may be

          3  something which needs a little further

          4  investigation, and it is good that the Chair of the

          5  Housing and Building Committee is here, because when

          6  you construct the facility, which has a kitchen in

          7  it and a sink, you must file with the Department of

          8  Buildings and have a grease trap. We are finding, in

          9  the testimony we talked about, undersized grease

         10  traps, it appears that once you get permitted and

         11  approved for your plumbing work, establishments will

         12  change the fixtures in that without the use of a

         13  licensed master plumber, because if it was a

         14  licensed plumber there are going to be filings at

         15  the Buildings Department. If you use unlicensed

         16  personnel, they are going to install fixtures, and

         17  many more than the trap can handle and that is where

         18  you get your undersizing and your grease build-up

         19  and your sewer back-ups.

         20                 So, there is this side to it that has

         21  illegal installations in the restaurants that the

         22  City doesn't capture on an application anywhere, and

         23  that overloads the system.

         24                 Undersized grease traps are a large

         25  percent of your findings?
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          2                 MR. LaGROTTA: Both the combination of

          3  undersized traps and a fixture with no trap at all,

          4  and that's another example where someone may have

          5  added a sink afterwards and didn't put a grease trap

          6  on it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Well, that

          8  brings me to a question, as we in government try to

          9  balance regulation and business growth, and I

         10  actually had a business owner who was locally based

         11  and lives in the neighborhood, open a restaurant and

         12  say that he got a violation from DEP after the

         13  Buildings Department approved his grease trap with

         14  no change. Are they different regulations between

         15  buildings and DEP on grease trap?

         16                 MR. LaGROTTA: When the Department

         17  revised its regulations in 1998 we reviewed the

         18  regulations with the Buildings Department and they

         19  determined our regulation was consistent with the

         20  building code, there was not a different

         21  requirement.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: So, there

         23  should be no reason that someone would get a

         24  violation if Buildings approved their grease

         25  apparatus, that you wouldn't have any reason to give
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          2  them a violation, as long as it was working?

          3                 MR. STURCKEN: It may be that, and I

          4  don't know the figure facts from your constituent,

          5  that what was installed was not according to the

          6  plan, so that the plan was, something was out of

          7  size, either his establishment, or the plan he

          8  submitted. But it is worth the Committee on Housing

          9  and Buildings looking into that portion of the

         10  Administrative Code that we could work with, as we

         11  said, with the restaurant industry and the plumbing

         12  industry.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Well, I am

         14  willing to look at the glass may be half full here

         15  and say that at least in your testimony, they are

         16  willing to admit that there is a problem, we know

         17  you think there is a problem, and that you are

         18  willing to work with the committees to come up with

         19  a solution, and I think that is good.

         20                 I must tell you that your emphasis is

         21  on education is good, but your test cases, I would

         22  submit to you, are areas where perhaps the

         23  restaurant owners, from my experience, are quite

         24  fluid in English, and the experience that I have in

         25  the district that I represent, which is very rich
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          2  with an immigrant population and immigrant

          3  entrepreneurs who run the greatest restaurants in

          4  this City, but their knowledge of compliance with

          5  regulations may be isn't always so good, and that's

          6  why we have the problems we have, and sometimes

          7  education and enforcement have to be a coupled

          8  entry, as they say at the track, and so I would like

          9  to see you work with us to make these bills better

         10  so that you can support them, or otherwise I would

         11  like to see us move forward with a modified version

         12  of these bills, because I know Council Member

         13  Harrison worked very hard on this, and something

         14  needs to be done because when you have 73

         15  establishments inspected and all 73 have a problem,

         16  the batting average is zero, and if you are batting

         17  zero you don't stay in the league too long. So, we

         18  would like to see better.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council

         21  Member Freed.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair. And I guess, you know, I have the same thing

         24  to say that everyone else has said, if we are doing

         25  everything that we should be doing, why do I still
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          2  have problems?

          3                 MR. STURCKEN: Your district, as you

          4  know, during Hurricane Floyd was particularly badly

          5  hit with sewer back-ups and flooding --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right.

          7                 MR. STURCKEN: One of the causes, one

          8  of the great causes we believe was a contractor's

          9  problem on the Route 9A project which has been

         10  abated. The bulkheading of the sewer outfall and

         11  that caused a large problem in the SoHo area.

         12                 However, after that, I will let Mr.

         13  Greeley talk to you about how we maintain it in your

         14  district.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

         16                 By the way, I think I should point

         17  out that I congratulate you on tracking down the

         18  sewer outflow and finding the problem, which was

         19  really a problem caused by a contractor at the end

         20  of this sewer outflows which caused the back-up

         21  which really caused massive flooding in the SoHo

         22  area, but I still have a lot of problems

         23  particularly over in the Chinatown area.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: I wanted

         25  to get this story out, when Council Member Sabini
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          2  was talking about how many restaurateurs cause their

          3  own problems, you had a major problem last night on

          4  West Broadway --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Again?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: And it

          7  was grease blocking the sewer pump station and it

          8  required us to be out there pumping until we get

          9  enough degreaser and get the pump running again.

         10  Case in point.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Although, I

         12  have to say, since we know that has been a problem

         13  area, haven't you been going back and checking the

         14  grease traps in that area?

         15                 MR. LaGROTTA: Yes, we have. We have

         16  done initial inspections at that area and we are

         17  doing follow-up inspections on maintenance.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, I guess,

         19  you know, please continue, it's just that there are

         20  a couple of areas, and you have even outlined a

         21  number of them where you had problems, and I know

         22  certainly in the Lower Manhattan area, the areas you

         23  outlined are areas that we continue to have

         24  problems, so I would think that they would be areas

         25  that you would go back and reinspect a lot.
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          2                 And I mean, some of them, simply

          3  because we have had a proliferation of restaurants

          4  and other uses where you would have the grease

          5  traps, I think some of them may have to do with the

          6  fact that we have some of the oldest infrastructure

          7  in the City, and I know that you did, for lack of a

          8  better term, a several million dollar Roter Rooter

          9  job down on Canal Street once, but, yet, problems

         10  remain.

         11                 MR. LaGROTTA: We still have some

         12  major capital build-outs to perform also. As part of

         13  that Canal Street project we have to move some water

         14  mains from the Canal Street sewer, which is probably

         15  the second oldest sewer in the City, and once we get

         16  --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Where is the

         18  oldest?

         19                 MR. LaGROTTA: Pardon me?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Where is the

         21  oldest?

         22                 MR. LaGROTTA: Broad Street --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: As long as it

         24  is still in my district.

         25                 MR. LaGROTTA: -- Where they filled in
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          2  or whatever.

          3                 Then we have to, there is a very

          4  large, very old sewer in West Broadway that, once we

          5  get the grade correct on Canal Street, then we can

          6  pitch it properly. That is somewhat down the road.

          7  It is within the next five years that work will be

          8  done.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: You will excuse

         10  me if I hold my head, because you know we have been

         11  working on this, I have been in the Council nine

         12  years and it has been a priority, it has been a

         13  problem, and I know it has gotten a lot of

         14  attention, particularly in the SoHo area, from the

         15  day I have been here, but that area has been

         16  flooding for 25 years, and that was even before the

         17  proliferation of restaurants, so obviously some of

         18  that, and I know we have gone through this, some of

         19  this is, as we said, some of the infrastructure or

         20  whatever, but every time it floods, those poor

         21  restaurants get it in their basements, the residents

         22  get it in their basements and we have had a lot of

         23  spoilage and problems.

         24                 MR. LaGROTTA: I don't want to cop a

         25  plea on this, but the SoHo area is very close to sea
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          2  level.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes, I know.

          4                 MR. LaGROTTA: And if you get a rain

          5  event, you have got the water here and water here

          6  trying to get that way, it's not like a free-running

          7  river. So, we have done quite a bit of maintenance.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Oh, I know.

          9                 MR. LaGROTTA: We have worked with a

         10  lot of community groups, and --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I don't really

         12  want to sound like I am faulting you. On the other

         13  hand, I will say to you what DEP said to me when we

         14  had other developments going down there, well if

         15  there is a problem with the infrastructure, that's

         16  not a reason to stop development, that just means we

         17  have to change the infrastructure to accommodate all

         18  of this, so I guess we are still waiting on that.

         19                 But let me also point out, in the

         20  Chinatown area, where you don't have the same kind

         21  of -- you know, where you still continue to have a

         22  lot of lot of back-ups, and it is complicated in

         23  addition to that, and some of this may be, and it

         24  may even be the rest in the City, but there is sort

         25  of an annoying thing that has been going on I
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          2  noticed where in a number of, where there -- with

          3  sidewalks, instead of getting curb cuts, we have got

          4  asphalt build-ups, and unfortunately some of those

          5  asphalt build-ups to help people get onto the curb

          6  have screwed up the drainage completely. Some of

          7  them have actually been over, it looks like either

          8  over catchbasins, or next to the drainage, and what

          9  you are getting now in so many of these, you will

         10  have like the asphalt build-up that will allow, for

         11  instance, if you are in a wheelchair, to go over the

         12  asphalt to get onto the sidewalk, but the problem is

         13  that it screws up the drainage almost any time, and

         14  certainly right now, yesterday if you were to look

         15  around, I know in the Lower Manhattan area what you

         16  would find is huge amounts of standing water which

         17  happened because of that, and I am wondering if you

         18  are aware of it, if you have given any attention to

         19  that, or if anything is being done about that.

         20                 MR. STURCKEN: Technically it is a DOT

         21  issue. We consider ourselves victims in that regard.

         22  But with the advent of ped ramps, there is a lot

         23  closer attention to proper grading, like the street

         24  flow, and we have to work almost on a location by

         25  location basis with DOT.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: So, we should

          3  be getting you all of those?

          4                 MR. STURCKEN: Certainly after the

          5  Canal Street job.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

          7                 Just to go back to the question

          8  particularly the lower east side and Chinatown where

          9  we do still have a lot of back-ups, and I have to

         10  tell you that there are plenty of restaurateurs who

         11  come to me to complain about the standing water in

         12  the catchbasin areas because it actually hurts their

         13  business.

         14                 Now, maybe there is a catch 22 and we

         15  don't realize that, but I am wondering how often in

         16  an area like that you reinspect, or you know there

         17  is a problem, and even though you targeted this

         18  area, and I know that you have been over there time

         19  and time again and doing education and everything,

         20  the problems remain. So, I guess for me, I would say

         21  where do we go from here, because that's why I am on

         22  these bills, and that's why I am hoping we can work

         23  out some of the problems, because clearly there is

         24  still a problem out there that we are not getting

         25  to.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            69

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: In some

          3  cases we have routine maintenance. In Councilwoman

          4  Harrison's district, on Main Street and Roosevelt,

          5  we were there just about every week cleaning the

          6  catchbasins because, and this is kind of ironic, the

          7  restaurateurs were cleaning their grease traps and

          8  dumping it in the catchbasins.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes, I have

         10  seen that happen.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: So, you

         12  know, we had it worked out with the community board

         13  that we would go there virtually on a weekly basis

         14  to get the stuff out before it started to snow,

         15  particularly in that weather.

         16                 We also have added -- we do have

         17  routines in Chinatown. I am not prepared to tell you

         18  what the locations are.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: South

         21  Street Seaport is another situation where you have

         22  got a lot of fish. We go in there, you know,

         23  monthly, weekly, we work out the cycle with the

         24  local interests.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Good. My only
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          2  request would be to widen that. The last question I

          3  had was as far as enforcement, but my understanding

          4  is you only have six agents that are designated to

          5  grease out of the 72 inspectors, out of 19,000

          6  roughly; do you really think that is enough?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Within

          8  our district, that Lower Manhattan area, we have

          9  done 385 restaurant inspections. We went back and

         10  reinspected all of those. We have upgraded equipment

         11  on 300 of those, and we now have 384 in compliance.

         12  There is only one without adequate equipment that we

         13  are doing follow-up inspections on.

         14                 We also went back and reinspected

         15  every single restaurant a second time for

         16  maintenance. This is since May of 2000 when we

         17  initiated this program, and we had issued 35

         18  violations for failure to maintain. And the second

         19  reinspections we had full compliance on maintenance.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Great.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: So, we

         22  have put a substantial amount of resources into that

         23  area due to our problems our sewer maintenance

         24  people were having at those stations.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right. You
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          2  know, I started this by saying I don't want to give

          3  you guys a hard time because I know you have been

          4  good about going out and doing these things, the

          5  problem is the problem remains which is why I am

          6  hoping we can work out some of the problems with

          7  this, and, you know, I still think we should

          8  probably throw you some extra money to try and get

          9  some additional enforcement personnel out there.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Freed.

         12                 Now we go to the Majority Whip,

         13  Council Member Robles.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman, and my colleagues.

         16                 The question has been asked more than

         17  once and I must tell you we are dancing around it so

         18  let me try it another way.

         19                 I was listening to Council Member

         20  Harrison and Sabini and Freed and what have you, and

         21  I turned around and I saw my friend Chuck Hunt from

         22  the Restaurant Association and I thought that this

         23  was a Health Committee meeting as we were addressing

         24  the restaurant inspection, and let me tell you why I

         25  thought of that.
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          2                 When we started dealing with the same

          3  issue about inspection, they only had 90 inspectors

          4  Citywide, and this 19,000 is light stuff compared to

          5  what they had to go out. And I must tell you,

          6  dealing with the issues, we didn't put the money in,

          7  they put the money in because they had a problem.

          8  The problem was they were not enforcing the law.

          9                 So, now having said that, let me lay

         10  what I now still go back to a question. Seventy-two

         11  inspectors in your agency Citywide, correct? Of

         12  that, only six are assigned for the purpose of the

         13  discussion at hand.

         14                 Now, in order to deal with that, I

         15  guess I have to lay some foundation. Every time,

         16  because I think it is really about complaint driven;

         17  is that fair to say? With six of them Citywide.

         18                 MR. STURCKEN: Complaint and knowing

         19  where our operations have to put more resources.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I understand

         21  that, and as Julia Harrison keeps screening, and

         22  individuals, but, yet, in other areas, where I come

         23  from, North Brooklyn, which we are not as bad but it

         24  is changing, unless we start complaining, we don't

         25  see you. And I am not being disrespectful, I am just
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          2  setting the tone. So, let me go back to my point.

          3                 Is it fair to say that every time we

          4  do not aggressively enforce the law, particularly

          5  when it comes to this issue, that in the long run it

          6  costs us more money than if we were to have enough

          7  inspectors to keep up the numbers that we need to

          8  oversee; is that fair to say?

          9                 MR. STURCKEN: What I can tell you is,

         10  our approach is, we first went to the Restaurant

         11  Association and said, look, we have a problem, and

         12  that is how we approached it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner, let

         14  me be clear.

         15                 There are 19,000 restaurants that I

         16  keep hearing.

         17                 MR. STURCKEN: Correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Of which of

         19  the 19,000, you have six inspectors Citywide to

         20  attempt to educate, to do all of the things we are

         21  talking about, because if we did that maybe we would

         22  only need six inspectors, if everyone was doing what

         23  they were supposed to do. But the reality is, since

         24  my colleagues said, and I also know it is to be a

         25  fact, many people come to the City, the City of hope
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          2  and opportunity -- for example, I will take Puerto

          3  Rico as a good example, and as Chairman of the

          4  Health Committee, you travel through the roads in

          5  Puerto Rico, you see them along the highways

          6  roasting a pig in open fire.

          7                 They come here and they think that

          8  they can do the same thing that they do over there

          9  over here. Well, excuse me, you can't do it.

         10                 And, so, my point is, if you are

         11  admitting or you are saying that because of the lack

         12  of proper education and following through, a lot of

         13  our problem is because people are not doing the

         14  proper things in running a restaurant, at least I

         15  think that is what I heard, correct? (No verbal

         16  answer given.)

         17                 Now, my point is, if you have 19,000

         18  restaurants, is this total or is this what you have

         19  seen?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That is

         21  the current estimate of restaurant establishments.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Good. And my

         23  point is, I don't believe with six inspectors that

         24  you can keep up with 19,000 restaurants. So, now I

         25  go back to Kathryn Freed's question. It is not about
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          2  us putting money. We are about to do a budget, and

          3  if you look at the Mayor's Preliminary Budget, I

          4  will tell you, in health services, $25 million are

          5  being cut out of Health Services. I don't know what

          6  EPA's budget looks like. I have to confess, I have

          7  to look at it. But before I put money in a surplus

          8  year that we have been dancing around, and we sure

          9  know how to find money for other things like police

         10  overtime, and CONDOR and all that other stuff, I

         11  think what we should hear, at least I like to hear,

         12  is, one, are you requesting for more inspectors in

         13  this budget in order to deal with the problem that

         14  in the longrun is going to cost us more money every

         15  time we send out a crew to unclog the sewer, sewers,

         16  that is related to all of this stuff.

         17                 I mean, folks, some of us are a

         18  little tired of this dancing around, and, so, I only

         19  have 10 months left and we are about to do a budget.

         20                 Again, I go back to her question: Do

         21  you believe, or are you requesting in this budget,

         22  for more inspectors in order to keep up with the

         23  problem that you are admitting when it comes to the

         24  grease problem in restaurants?

         25                 MR. STURCKEN: To answer your
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          2  question, I don't know if it is specific to an

          3  inspector for grease for a restaurant, but I can

          4  tell you there is a request for extra money for the

          5  divisions --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: My only

          7  problem of being a member of this Committee, and not

          8  of Housing but of Environmental, is I have been on

          9  this Committee now, and he is a great guy, excellent

         10  chairman, I am not saying nothing, but every time we

         11  spoke about police officers to enforce it, we are

         12  talking about the watershed in Upstate New York, you

         13  know, Upstate and that stuff, and I have often been

         14  frustrated because when it comes to my, what I call

         15  bread and butter issues that get us elected, my

         16  point is, if we have a problem in the City of New

         17  York, just like the watershed, and we have increased

         18  the Police Department within the Environmental

         19  Protection, solely for the watershed because we have

         20  to protect our waters. The question is, are we

         21  requesting for police officers who are inspectors

         22  for the purpose of keeping up with the 19,000

         23  restaurants that are creating a problem for us, that

         24  we cannot cure through proper education and what

         25  have you.
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          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That's a good

          3  question when we get to the budget hearings.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: The reason I

          5  raised it, Mr. Chairman, is the following: You see,

          6  my colleague asked them whether they believe they

          7  need more inspectors, and then I believe the

          8  gentleman there starts talking about her district, I

          9  don't think that she asked the question about her

         10  district, and I just picked up. So, I just want to

         11  be sure that you know folks, if you are really going

         12  to deal with this issue, and an issue that is

         13  something that we can deal with, then I want you to

         14  know that, one, education, and you then need to put

         15  money in the budget in order to do that. And then

         16  one more inspection so that in the longrun, in the

         17  beginning might be aggressive, and everyone knows

         18  that it does what it is supposed to and knows that

         19  you are constantly looking over them, you might not

         20  need those numbers and may come down to the six

         21  again. But so long as you keep discussing this, and

         22  only six people are doing this when there is 19,000

         23  restaurants, I don't believe you will ever keep up

         24  with the problems and really deal with it, and that

         25  is my personal opinion.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            78

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Majority Whip.

          4                 Gentlemen, Mr. Sturcken, Mr. Greeley

          5  and Mr. LaGrotta, thank you for your testimony and

          6  your time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I wanted to

          8  ask them a question.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Oh, Council

         10  Member Marshall.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The

         12  inspectors who inspect the grease interceptors, do

         13  they also do other kinds of inspections? Or let me

         14  put the question another way: Of your building

         15  inspectors, are they all trained to do this?

         16                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: These are not

         17  building inspectors, right?

         18                 MR. STURCKEN: These are not. And that

         19  is why Mr. Greeley has the say field operations in

         20  water in sewer, and Mr. LaGrotta has the industry

         21  pollution program, which they do the restaurant

         22  inspections, Mr. Greeley inspects from the street.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, I

         24  asked that question because you know that we do get

         25  the building inspectors on a monthly basis, and
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          2  there are restaurants in my district also that -- I

          3  mean, the sidewalk is so slick, they are not even

          4  careful when they pour it out. And it would be

          5  helpful for them to have some kind of knowledge so

          6  that they can at least report it to your special

          7  detail.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: These

          9  six persons are dedicated solely to the grease

         10  program, they do not do any other kinds of

         11  inspections. All of them have engineering degrees

         12  and they receive also field training and

         13  supervision, so they are well trained.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: How are they

         15  divided among the boroughs?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: What we

         17  are doing now is we are doing it on a geographic

         18  basis to focus our resources in a specific area for

         19  an efficiency viewpoint. We put all the restaurants

         20  into a geographic database so that we can focus our

         21  efforts in an area to get excellent productivity

         22  from the forces.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: You really

         24  aren't answering the question.

         25                 How many come to Queens?
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          2                 MR. STURCKEN: When we started

          3  focusing on the problem, in the testimony we were

          4  talking about 1988, putting some emphasis on this,

          5  Mr. Greeley's operation knows where he is always

          6  deploying people to fix the sewers, and where the

          7  sewer back-ups come in. So, taking that and his

          8  results of the inspections we are always finding

          9  grease, then we started mapping it and we could see

         10  the concentration of restaurants in certain areas,

         11  necessitated greater emphasis on the enforcement,

         12  education and outreach. That's how we approached

         13  this, and that's why you see those maps like that.

         14                 Can other places arise, like Council

         15  Member Robles says, are arising? Yes, they can. As

         16  an initial effort, though, since May of 2000, we

         17  think it has been pretty successful, as hopefully

         18  the problem will abate.

         19                 If the 19,000 restaurants all started

         20  doing it, we are lost. But, you know, our approach

         21  is to go into those areas that we find the most

         22  problem, most stress on the infrastructure. We will

         23  maintain this program, we are not going to let go,

         24  but obviously you see how important it is to the

         25  constituencies, and, you know, more resources--
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But clearly

          3  --

          4                 MR. STURCKEN: -- Next year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: -- You could

          6  use more inspectors, it would make your job a lot

          7  easier.

          8                 All right, you are not obligated to

          9  answer that.

         10                 MR. STURCKEN: Well, you know,

         11  resources is always wonderful, but we thought this

         12  is the smartest way to approach it right now, and we

         13  got to every area since May.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right,

         15  the other point I would like to make on installing

         16  these grease interceptors, is that with

         17  self-certification on the installation process?

         18                 MR. STURCKEN: I really can't answer

         19  that. It is done at the Department of Buildings, and

         20  I don't know. I know you must have a licensed

         21  plumber on the application and get a permit to

         22  install fixtures.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, you

         24  know, we want to be sure when they are installed

         25  that they are installed properly.
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          2                 You don't know whether or not -- who

          3  approves of that installation?

          4                 MR. STURCKEN: The Department of

          5  Buildings.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The

          7  Department of Buildings.

          8                 Do you know if that comes under

          9  self-certification?

         10                 They are self-certifying them all

         11  over the place.

         12                 MR. STURCKEN: Maybe one of the other

         13  witnesses can testify, but I am not familiar with

         14  all of the applications of that program.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, I

         16  think that is an important thing for your agency to

         17  know. That's important for you to know. They can put

         18  undersized tanks, they can make shortcuts and it's

         19  affecting the plumbing.

         20                 MR. STURCKEN: And we do find this, as

         21  I mentioned in the testimony, we do find it when we

         22  go to the restaurants, they are undersized.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         24                 MR. STURCKEN: As I said, a lot of

         25  them are installing them illegally, so they may
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          2  never even go to the Department of Buildings, and

          3  they are not using licensed plumbers.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

          7  gentlemen. I want to thank you for your testimony.

          8                 Let me ask you this question, or a

          9  suggestion: What if we gave Health Department

         10  inspectors a concurrent jurisdiction so when they

         11  would go checking the hot water and the seam table,

         12  they take a look at the grease traps; would that be

         13  a possibility? I am certain Victor will share his

         14  restaurant health inspectors with us.

         15                 MR. STURCKEN: Mr. LaGrotta informs us

         16  that we do talk to the Health Department, and when

         17  they do inspections if they notice anything we are

         18  going to work out a system of referral.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So they do

         20  look at the grease trap as a part of their overall

         21  inspection?

         22                 MR. STURCKEN: We have asked that they

         23  fold us into their inspections.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

         25  gentlemen, again, thank you for your testimony.
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          2                 Now it goes to the general public,

          3  and in that category we have five, Mr. Charles Hunt,

          4  followed by Stewart O'Brien, Marilyn Bitterman,

          5  Eugene Kelty, Blaise Parascondola and Madeline

          6  Michaels.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, and while

          8  they are coming to the table, I just wanted to

          9  remind the people from the Environmental Protection

         10  Agency, that we look forward to you getting in

         11  contact with us to sit down with Counsel and with

         12  the sponsors in order to work on the legislation,

         13  because we think there is a need, and I think you

         14  seem to agree that there is a need for this

         15  legislation, and let's see what we can agree upon,

         16  the rules change or whatever it is that we can do,

         17  but it seems that this is a problem we have to

         18  address. So, thank you very much for all coming.

         19                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Hunt,

         20  will you have a seat and identify yourself and who

         21  you represent.

         22                 MR. HUNT: Good afternoon, Mr.

         23  Chairman, and members of the Committees. My name is

         24  E. Charles Hunt. I am the Executive Vice President

         25  of the Greater New York Chapter of the New York
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          2  State Restaurant Association. We are a trade

          3  association representing over 2,000 food service

          4  outlets within the five boroughs of New York City.

          5                 Our membership is made up of all

          6  types of operations, from neighborhood coffee shops

          7  to the Four Seasons and Tavern on the Green.

          8                 This afternoon we would like to

          9  address the three new laws proposed to amend the

         10  City's Administrative Code, regarding the

         11  installation and maintenance of grease traps in food

         12  service establishments.

         13                 You have already heard this, but

         14  grease traps and grease interceptors are devices

         15  designed to prevent or limit the discharge of animal

         16  fats and vegetable oils that are the natural

         17  by-products of food production and food service.

         18                 The New York State Restaurant

         19  Association has worked closely with the City's

         20  Department of Environmental Protection to inform our

         21  industry of its responsibilities in respect to the

         22  discharge of grease and oil byproducts of food

         23  service operations.

         24                 As evidence of those efforts, I am

         25  submitting with the text of my testimony today an
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          2  article that appeared in the May 2000 issue of

          3  Entree Magazine, and official publication of the New

          4  York State Restaurant Association that has

          5  circulated not just to our members, but to

          6  approximately 7,500 restaurants in New York City.

          7                 The article was written to notify

          8  food service operators of the DEP's problems with

          9  the blockages and back-ups caused by the

         10  accumulation of grease in the main sewer lines of

         11  certain New York City locations.

         12                 The article further informed the food

         13  service industry, the Citywide grease reduction

         14  enforcement and education strategy being implemented

         15  by the DEP to deal with those problems.

         16                 I have also included a copy of

         17  Commissioner Joel Miele's letter and attachments

         18  that were sent to all City restaurant owners.

         19                 These documents clearly outlined what

         20  we feel is a sensible and reasonable approach to the

         21  enforcement of laws and regulations that are already

         22  in place.

         23                 The DEP also has a section of its web

         24  site devoted to grease discharges into sewers.

         25                 I have included a copy of that
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          2  section in my submission as well.

          3                 My purpose in including all of this

          4  material for your review is to emphasize that

          5  appropriate rules and programs are already in

          6  effect, that our industry is aware of the

          7  requirements and that the DEP and our association

          8  have taken necessary steps to live up to our

          9  respective responsibilities.

         10                 Specifically, I offer the following

         11  comments regarding the three bills being considered:

         12                 As to Intro. 735, which would add

         13  grease and oil to the section of the Code regarding

         14  the sampling of industrial wastewater discharge and

         15  could require an extremely costly installation by

         16  restaurant owners of a separate manhole or manholes,

         17  to permit the taking of samples.

         18                 There are much simpler ways to take a

         19  sample, you don't need a sledge hammer to kill a

         20  mosquito. 735 would further require the installation

         21  of grease traps in "every waste line of a food

         22  service establishment which may receive grease or

         23  oil."

         24                 Normally a grease trap can be

         25  installed at a central point where kitchen lines
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          2  merge, avoiding the costly expense of additional

          3  traps.

          4                 The requirement for grease traps and

          5  their placement are already covered by the existing

          6  Plumbing Code.

          7                 The Code also recognizes that it is

          8  relatively impossible to completely eliminate the

          9  discharge of grease and oils, and sets a wastewater

         10  discharge limit of 100 parts per million of oil and

         11  grease.

         12                 A correctly sized trap that is

         13  properly maintained can usually effectively control

         14  discharge at or below this level. Proper

         15  installation and maintenance is already called for

         16  by Title 15 19-11 of the rules of the City of New

         17  York.

         18                 As to Intro. 736, this would raise

         19  the fines by 100 percent, and allow the DEP to call

         20  for suspension or revocation of a license or permit

         21  issued for any food service establishment.

         22                 Don't you think that the present

         23  maximum fine of $1,000 per day is sufficient to get

         24  a restaurateurs attention?

         25                 Enforcement of existing fines and
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          2  penalties should serve the purpose.

          3                 Intro. 830 adds a paragraph requiring

          4  all food service establishments to enter into a

          5  grease trap maintenance service agreement performed

          6  or supervised by a master plumber. Depending upon

          7  the type and size of a restaurant, grease trap

          8  maintenance may be required as frequently as daily.

          9  Anyone who has ever worked in a restaurant

         10  recognizes the need for proper trap maintenance.

         11                 Improper maintenance usually triggers

         12  back-ups first within the restaurant kitchen long

         13  before problems occur in the City's sewer lines. And

         14  Murphy's Law being what it is, I might add that

         15  these initial back-ups always happen either on

         16  Mother's Day, New Year's Eve or some other extremely

         17  busy time.

         18                 Most restaurants have a very strictly

         19  adhered to schedule of trap maintenance performed by

         20  their own personnel. Master plumbers and their

         21  attendant fees are not required for routine

         22  maintenance.

         23                 In conclusion, I would like to state

         24  that we are aware that there may be a few less

         25  responsible operators who are uninformed of or
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          2  choose to ignore existing regulations.

          3                 If the Department of Environmental

          4  Protection has a rigorous and effective program of

          5  education and enforcement in effect, we fail to see

          6  the need for any of these proposes amendments to the

          7  existing laws. We feel that the rules, as they

          8  stand, are sufficient.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Hunt, for your testimony.

         12                 As you see, or you have heard from

         13  the testimony of the Department of Environmental

         14  Protection, there are difference of opinion and you

         15  have contributed to the discussion, and it says to

         16  me that from exchanges of this type, that we will

         17  come to the point where we will have the kind of

         18  improvements and changes that will represent the

         19  appropriate public policy to address the problem.

         20                 You stated at the outset that you

         21  have 2,000 members, the EP says there are 19,000

         22  plus. So, a few more that are not --

         23                 MR. HUNT: The Health Department, Mr.

         24  Chairman, actually says there is 21,000.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, you see
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          2  there are a few beyond 2,000 that you can't really

          3  speak for.

          4                 Anyway, I think this is a good start

          5  today, and I recognize Mr. Sabini.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Hunt, for your

          9  testimony, and I agree with Chairman Spigner, it may

         10  not be your members that are a problem, but there is

         11  a problem, and to insist that everything is okay now

         12  is not reflective in the reality that we see out in

         13  the neighborhoods of places like Queens anyway.

         14                 For example, you mentioned how

         15  improper trap maintenance would cause a back-up

         16  within the kitchen before the problem occurred in

         17  the City sewer line, that would mean that the

         18  restaurant was disposing of the grease in the

         19  kitchen. We know anecdotally by physical viewing

         20  that many restaurants dump their grease right

         21  outside their door in the City's sewer system.

         22                 MR. HUNT: Well, that's illegal.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: We know it is

         24  illegal, but they are doing it. And by perhaps

         25  requiring more fines for and maintenance contracts
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          2  for grease traps, then they might actually do it the

          3  right way. I think that is what we are seeking to

          4  do.

          5                 As someone who patronizes restaurants

          6  quite a bit, I have empathy for your membership, but

          7  what about the fact that we have heard testimony

          8  today and questions obviously from us that there is

          9  a problem.

         10                 MR. HUNT: There absolutely is a

         11  problem.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: What do you do

         13  about it?

         14                 MR. HUNT: May I respond? There is

         15  something that can be done. We do not want to give

         16  you the idea that we think everything is honky

         17  dorie, it certainly isn't. One of the reasons that

         18  some irresponsible operators choose to, as you say,

         19  dump their grease down the drains, instead of

         20  disposing of it properly, is that it has become

         21  exceedingly difficult to dispose of it properly.

         22  There is only one or two companies that still come

         23  around and collect grease from restaurants. I am

         24  talking about the grease from the traps, I am

         25  talking about the grease from the fryers, I am
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          2  talking about any other grease that accumulates in

          3  the restaurant.

          4                 If the City were to provide a way for

          5  restaurants to better dispose of this, maybe the

          6  Department of Sanitation could collect it. Certainly

          7  that would solve a problem. Some of these people

          8  don't understand that you are not supposed to put it

          9  down the drain --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right.

         11                 MR. HUNT: And I would agree with you

         12  quite possibly that our members who we try to keep

         13  informed and who are responsible, are perhaps not

         14  the greatest ones that are causing the problem.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Or they could

         16  put it in with their private carted --

         17                 MR. HUNT: The private carters won't

         18  take it. Many of the landfills won't allow them to

         19  put fat grease into the solid waste.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Put what's in

         21  the trap in metal containers and just put it in

         22  their dumpsters.

         23                 MR. HUNT: It should be either

         24  recycled or incinerated.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: All right,
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          2  thank you.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council

          4  Member Marshall.

          5                 As far as the grease, we could make

          6  soap out of it. I recall as a kid in the south, that

          7  was the source of our soap.

          8                 MR. HUNT: Well, they make cosmetics

          9  and animal feed and so forth out of it.

         10                 But the market for this grease has

         11  greatly decreased with the use of some synthetic

         12  materials, and it's hard to find renderers that will

         13  come and collect this, even for a fee.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That's a

         15  concern that I am happy that you raised, because it

         16  was one that we hadn't thought of.

         17                 Helen. Council Member Marshall.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Mr. Hunt,

         19  just a quick question.

         20                 When a restaurant finds that the

         21  grease is causing a back-up, how do they remedy it?

         22                 MR. HUNT: Well, there are a number of

         23  reasons that you could have a back-up in a

         24  restaurant. On would be improper sizing of the

         25  grease trap, as the gentleman from DEP pointed out,
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          2  and improper maintenance.

          3                 And believe me, the job of cleaning a

          4  grease trap is not the most popular job. In fact, at

          5  one time it was rated number two as to the bad jobs,

          6  the worst being the inside man at the diaper

          7  service. However, now that most people use

          8  disposable diapers, it is the number one least

          9  popular job.

         10                 No restaurant wants to have a back-up

         11  when they are busy or at any time, and you will find

         12  when people understand that they have an undersized

         13  trap, often times they on their own will replace

         14  them and make them larger.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But you

         16  still didn't tell me how they remedy it. They have

         17  to go down there and clean out the trap, is that it?

         18                 MR. HUNT: Oh, yes. In fact, as I say,

         19  many restaurants to avoid problems have somebody

         20  that does it daily.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

         22                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Hunt, I

         23  seriously doubt that there are business people, I

         24  don't care what ethnic group, whether they are

         25  Kentucky Fried Chicken or the fastfood Chinese
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          2  take-out, I know fried food is increased as opposed

          3  to broiled, baked and boiled.

          4                 MR. HUNT: That's right.

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Fried food

          6  restaurants are in the increase. The Health

          7  Department has some very strict requirements in

          8  terms of training, in terms of notification, I don't

          9  if ignorance of the law, it's not acceptable, I

         10  don't know how widespread ignorance of the law.

         11                 Council Member Nelson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Just briefly,

         13  I was going to concur with my colleagues that

         14  enforcement would be ideal, but you are never going

         15  to get the proper law enforcement official out

         16  there, I believe when these guys and gals are

         17  dumping it into the streets.

         18                 And there has been an increase. I

         19  don't know if it is the ethnicities or what

         20  throughout the City, it is causing, or maybe there

         21  are just more younger kids, again, than there used

         22  to be eating a lot of French fries. But whatever it

         23  is, I get a lot of complaints in my area, it is not

         24  from Queens, it is in Brooklyn, and it is just

         25  clouding up the entire sewer line.
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          2                 How many members are in your

          3  organization again, approximately?

          4                 MR. HUNT: We represent about 2,000

          5  restaurants.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: There are

          7  about how many in the City?

          8                 MR. HUNT: According to the health

          9  permits, the latest count, there is approximately

         10  21,000 food service operations, now they are not all

         11  restaurants necessarily.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: That may be a

         13  part of the problem, too, getting across to them

         14  educationally the information which your

         15  organization could provide but only to the members

         16  who are actually dues-paying members.

         17                 This is part of the problem, that's

         18  why we are trying to come up with something that

         19  does not really break the restaurants, if you will,

         20  yet save the City. I just wanted to add that, too.

         21                 MR. HUNT: Well, if you could help us

         22  find a way to properly dispose of this.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Like

         24  composting of grease of sorts.

         25                 MR. HUNT: Well, I am sure there are a
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          2  number of ways, but one of the simplest things for

          3  us would be if we could just find somebody to come

          4  get it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. Or an

          6  alchemist, something.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Hunt, is

          8  instruction about responsibility for disposable

          9  grease and grease trap, is that a part of the

         10  restaurant food handling course?

         11                 MR. HUNT: Yes.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         13                 MR. HUNT: It is part of.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         15                 Stewart O'Brien. Mr. O'Brien, if you

         16  will identify yourself, we would be delighted to

         17  hear your testimony.

         18                 MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My

         19  name is Stewart O'Brien, and I am Executive Director

         20  of the Plumbing Foundation, and I promised your

         21  co-chair of this meeting that I would be no more

         22  than three minutes, and in that regard I will skip

         23  the first two paragraphs of my two-page testimony to

         24  get to the heart of the matter.

         25                 The grease problem, and I was talking
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          2  initially about installation, but I will skip that,

          3  I think you have heard enough about that. The grease

          4  problem, though, does not end once the trap is

          5  installed. If a grease trap is not properly

          6  maintained, the grease will enter the building's

          7  draining lines in the City sewer system. The

          8  maintenance problem is large.

          9                 In August 1999, DEP reported that it

         10  inspected 37 restaurants in Queens and found that

         11  more than 50 percent were not properly maintaining

         12  their grease traps. Let me repeat that: Fifty

         13  percent of the restaurants they looked at of those

         14  37 had grease traps but they were not being properly

         15  maintained, and today you saw a chart, you saw a

         16  chart up there that shows that 20 percent of the

         17  restaurants they visited, remember they visited

         18  1,300, approximately 800 didn't have grease traps,

         19  so there were 500 that did have grease traps, 97 of

         20  those 500 received violations for not being properly

         21  maintained, and that is after they were given a

         22  30-day notice saying, by the way, we are coming out

         23  to check your grease traps, 20 percent of those

         24  still didn't have them properly maintained.

         25                 So, the problem of maintenance is not
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          2  a small problem.

          3                 With such a high degree of

          4  noncompliance, we are strongly in favor of any

          5  procedure that will ensure that once a grease trap

          6  is installed, it is properly maintained.

          7                 There are various options to address

          8  the issue of maintenance. The first is to rely on

          9  the owners of establishments with grease traps to

         10  maintain them.

         11                 In a perfect world this would be a

         12  great option, but we know that crossing our fingers

         13  and hoping for compliance is naive.

         14                 The second option is to send DEP

         15  inspectors to visit those establishments

         16  periodically and issue violations for those who fail

         17  to comply.

         18                 Unfortunately, with tens of

         19  thousands, at least 21,000 restaurants, this place

         20  is an extremely large and continuous manpower burden

         21  on DEP.

         22                 As you heard, with six inspectors and

         23  21,000 restaurants, there is no way you can cover

         24  that.

         25                 They may have been doing a pretty
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          2  good job on the ones they have been targeting, but

          3  you can't cover 21,000. So, how do you reach the

          4  maintenance problem?

          5                 The third option is contained in

          6  Intro. 830. Intro. 830 authorizes the Commissioner

          7  of DEP to establish requirements for the maintenance

          8  of these devices, the nature, the scope, the

          9  frequency. Nobody does it except the Commissioner of

         10  DEP. And it self effectuates implementation by

         11  requiring the owner of the establishment, not the

         12  owner of the building, but the owner of the food

         13  establishment having a grease trap, to have a

         14  contract for the maintenance of that grease trap.

         15                 If an owner is required to pay for a

         16  maintenance contract, actual maintenance will be

         17  performed, as there is no cost, additional cost, to

         18  having it actually done.

         19                 If I am required to pay for the

         20  maintenance of the contract, I am going to make sure

         21  that person comes and actually does it, because I am

         22  paying them anyway. So, it essentially

         23  self-effectuates itself. You don't have to rely on

         24  inspectors going out, you don't have to send more

         25  inspectors, you don't have to do any of that. You
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          2  don't have to rely on the good graces of some

          3  restaurant owners, even though I am sure there are

          4  restaurant owners who do a great job, thousands do

          5  not.

          6                 Enforcement is simple and

          7  self-effectuating. Requiring owners to have

          8  maintenance contracts for certain equipment is not a

          9  novel idea. The Building Code presently requires

         10  that owners of residential buildings with elevators

         11  have a contract for emergency repairs. This has been

         12  done before.

         13                 If the Council decides to go with

         14  this third option, who then should perform the

         15  maintenance?

         16                 Well, it must be performed by

         17  companies that are licensed. The quality of the

         18  maintenance will only be assured if the City of New

         19  York can take action against companies that do not

         20  perform satisfactorily. We can't let anybody do it,

         21  we have to make sure that if you don't do it right,

         22  we can take your license away and you are out of

         23  business.

         24                 Since these grease traps are part of

         25  the plumbing system and can only be installed by
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          2  licensed plumbers, it seems logical that the

          3  maintenance of the devices also be performed by

          4  plumbers.

          5                 You heard Mr. Sturcken testify before

          6  that a lot of problems have to do with sizing. Once

          7  it's in other fixtures get installed and licensed

          8  plumbers do that work, they understand that work.

          9  Even though it may initially be installed, when you

         10  do the maintenance you are going to find some

         11  problems. That's why we think licensed plumbers

         12  should do it.

         13                 The sizing of the traps is a

         14  technical issue and it can change dependent upon

         15  fixtures being added after installation. A licensed

         16  plumber can recognize an undersized trap.

         17                 We understand that there is concern

         18  over limiting the maintenance of traps only to

         19  licensed plumbing companies.

         20                 We believe that the key to assuring

         21  that the traps are continually maintained is a

         22  requirement of a maintenance contract. We think that

         23  is the key for the maintenance. Unless you want to

         24  give the Department of Environmental Protection 25

         25  more inspectors that go after that, you have to come
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          2  up with some other mechanism to make sure they are

          3  maintained, and we think that requiring the

          4  maintenance contract which is done in other

          5  provisions of the building code should be done as

          6  well.

          7                 The work must be performed by

          8  qualified companies and we would be happy to discuss

          9  with the Council, DEP, and any other interested

         10  parties, a workable steam to ensure that the goal of

         11  continual maintenance of these devices is

         12  maintained.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. O'Brien,

         14  as usual, you have contributed significantly to the

         15  discussion, to the topic under discussion, and we

         16  want to thank you. And as we move forward, we are

         17  not voting today, but there will be other

         18  opportunities for us to hear from you. Right now

         19  Council Member Nelson has a question, followed by

         20  Council Member Marshall.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, what you

         22  say appears to make the most sense overall, but is

         23  there an approximate cost, you think, to -- I know

         24  there are restaurants with 30 seats, there are

         25  restaurants that are around 3200 and something
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          2  seats, but has any study been done at all?

          3                 MR. O'BRIEN: It would really depend

          4  upon the Commissioner of DEP and how often the

          5  Commissioner says, because it would be done by rule

          6  and regulation, how often they would have to do the

          7  inspections and the clean-outs. So, it is difficult.

          8                 Plumbers do this work now. Usually

          9  there is a clog and they have to go out and maintain

         10  the trap, and that is just the regular service call.

         11  We don't price it out because there are no such

         12  thing as maintenance contracts with plumbers now

         13  just for the grease traps. So it is dependent upon

         14  whatever the Commissioner of DEP, if he says to do

         15  it once a day, that's a different issue than

         16  cleaning it once every month, obviously.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: How much would

         18  once a day cost?

         19                 MR. O'BRIEN: Well, a visit by a

         20  plumber, just to go out and spend an hour there, you

         21  are talking in the nature of $150 to $200, I am

         22  being realistic about that. So, if it is a month,

         23  once a month, that' what your cost would be,

         24  something in that range.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I realize it
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          2  is not as precedented as you said elevators in

          3  buildings, as far as forced maintenance contract,

          4  and with the City being --

          5                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, with

          6  all due respect, you know, it's a stretch, elevators

          7  and grease traps.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: In that

          9  respect it is, right. It is not totally analogous, I

         10  realize.

         11                 MR. O'BRIEN: The concept is there I

         12  think.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, we will

         15  look into that, the concept.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         17  O'Brien.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council

         19  Member Marshall has a question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         21                 Can you approximate how many of the

         22  restaurants of this 2,000 that we have that are

         23  actually --

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Twenty-one

         25  thousand.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Twenty-one

          3  thousand. Sorry, 21,000, that actually have properly

          4  installed grease traps?

          5                 MR. O'BRIEN: I think you would have

          6  to ask the DEP based on their 1,300 that they

          7  inspected. I saw the numbers up there, that 800

          8  apparently didn't have grease traps, I am just

          9  reading the number, that is a very large number. And

         10  of the remaining ones that did, the 500 that did,

         11  one out of every five, they weren't being properly

         12  maintained. Again, even with a notice saying DEP was

         13  coming to inspect.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: We are in

         15  bad shape, we need to straighten this situation out.

         16                 MR. O'BRIEN: Somehow.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         19  Mr. O'Brien.

         20                 Marilyn Bitterman.

         21                 MS. BITTERMAN: Good afternoon. My

         22  name is Marilyn Bitterman, and I am District Manager

         23  of Community Board No. 7.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: In what

         25  borough? There are several.
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          2                 MS. BITTERMAN: In Queens.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Oh, okay.

          4                 MS. BITTERMAN: Council Member Julia

          5  Harrison, John Sabini, and members of the

          6  Environmental Committee of the City Council, I would

          7  like to thank you for allowing me to present

          8  testimony on Intro. 735 and 736.

          9                 For many years Community Board 7, as

         10  well as local elected officials, and business

         11  groups, have been receiving complaints regarding

         12  grease and oil being generated from food service

         13  establishments, in addition to the restaurants

         14  discharging their waste into the City sewer system.

         15                 During the summer months, the odors

         16  emanating from rancid oil permeates throughout

         17  downtown Flushing. In addition to having the City

         18  being fined by State DEC, because these liquids and

         19  raw sewage are flowing into Flushing Bay.

         20                 Several years ago, after many lengthy

         21  meetings with business groups, affected restaurants

         22  and elected officials, I personally wrote to Council

         23  Member Julia Harrison to see if the City Council

         24  would introduce legislation which would amend the

         25  Administrative Code and allow the City agencies to
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          2  be able to find the establishment for violating

          3  sections of a code. I would like to personally thank

          4  you for listening.

          5                 Not only would this legislation

          6  affect District 7 in Queens, but would put every

          7  community Citywide in compliance with regard to

          8  grease and oil waste disposal.

          9                 In addition, I would like to see this

         10  legislation expanded to make oil and grease added to

         11  the mandatory City recycling.

         12                 Again, thank you, Councilpersons

         13  Harrison and Sabini, for listening to your

         14  communities, to listen to what your communities have

         15  requested and making the City a better place to

         16  live.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Ms.

         18  Bitterman, what is the uniqueness of rancid oil as

         19  distinct from some other kind of smell, offensive

         20  smell?

         21                 MS. BITTERMAN: It's offensive. I

         22  mean, we have the problem --

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How do you

         24  know it is oil?

         25                 I mean, how do you know it is oil?
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          2                 MS. BITTERMAN: I have smelled rancid

          3  oil, and it permeates in downtown Flushing, and when

          4  it gets very warm -- what happens is a lot of

          5  restaurants are putting grease in the oil in with

          6  their garbage, it goes through the collection, it

          7  gets squeezed and it winds up on the sidewalk.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You know it

          9  is oil?

         10                 MS. BITTERMAN: Oh, you know it is

         11  oil, and it is slippery. The sidewalk --

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: As distinct

         13  from some other kind of decay or waste, it's oil,

         14  huh?

         15                 MS. BITTERMAN: It is slippery. You

         16  can see the --

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I can tell

         18  the smell of Number 6 home feeding fuel, or Number 2

         19  home feeding fuel, I don't know if I can tell the

         20  smell of fat.

         21                 MR. KELTY: Councilman, my name is

         22  Gene Kelty, I am the Chairman for the Board, that's

         23  why I came up, I figured you wanted the team up here

         24  in the front.

         25                 The rancid odor we are talking about
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          2  is the food product that gets put into the oil. You

          3  can smell that, okay? When fried chicken or any type

          4  of fish is made, that as well has the smell to it,

          5  and that is what is being dumped in, and that is the

          6  smell that is currently going into the sewer system

          7  or into the storm drain.

          8                 When it sits for a day or two, it

          9  smells in the thing, we had Sanitation bail us out,

         10  where they put a water unit down with an odorizer in

         11  it. That's what the smell is we are talking about.

         12  It is not Number 6 oil, it is not Number 2 oil,

         13  however, we can smell that. It is the oil that is

         14  coming from cooking and that is very distinct. And

         15  that is very distinct in the downtown Flushing, as

         16  it is in Assemblyman Sabini's area, and I am sure

         17  Assemblyman Nelson's area.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I am not the

         19  expert, a smell is a smell is a smell.

         20                 Council Member Michels.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

         22                 Are you with the Fire Department?

         23                 MR. KELTY: I will tell you I work for

         24  the Fire Department, I am not here representing

         25  them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is a

          3  reason I asked the question.

          4                 MR. KELTY: Oh.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is this

          6  flammable? In other words, if there is a flame or a

          7  match gets down there, will this go up?

          8                 MR. KELTY: It will add to it. It will

          9  add to it because it is an oil base, it is a product

         10  of an oil base.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The grease I am

         12  talking about, is this likely to cause a fire, an

         13  in-ground fire?

         14                 MR. KELTY: It is not likely to cause

         15  a fire unless it is in the quantity or the heat

         16  sources there. It's not like Number 2 oil or Number

         17  6 diesel fuel that has the flammable base to it. It

         18  will add to it and it will accelerate a fire once

         19  the fire starts.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There are some

         21  circumstances where it can be very dangerous, as far

         22  as fire is concerned.

         23                 MR. KELTY: I was going to allude to

         24  that. Just if I may?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.
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          2                 MR. KELTY: One of the things we

          3  mentioned before, it is not just the interceptors

          4  they are talking about, it is the disposal that was

          5  mentioned before. A lot of the people that don't

          6  want to put it into the sewer system or into their

          7  trap separators put it in five gallon cans.

          8                 I work in Lower Manhattan, again, I

          9  am not representing the Fire Department, but I work

         10  here and I do the enforcement down here for the

         11  Department, and we have found that they put them in

         12  five gallon plastic containers, five gallon metal

         13  containers, and sometimes there are 10 to 12 of them

         14  sitting in the basement waiting for the waste

         15  recovery people to come along.

         16                 As Marilyn said before, those waste

         17  recovery people don't want to do it anymore because

         18  when they put it in the sanitation truck, the blade

         19  comes down, severs the plastic container, metal

         20  container, shoots it all over the sidewalk, as

         21  Councilwoman Harrison has personally seen it down

         22  there with us, and now we have that oil on the

         23  sidewalk and going into the street.

         24                 The problem is recycling that oil and

         25  getting it back into the system so it doesn't create
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          2  a problem, whether they do it like the septic tanks

          3  that you have in the areas that don't have sewers or

          4  something in five gallon drums -- 50 gallon drums

          5  that make sure that it gets contained and not become

          6  a problem.

          7                 If they were put in 55 gallon drums,

          8  as you stated before, Councilman Michels, you won't

          9  have the fire problem because they will send a metal

         10  drum that will be contained in the basement. The

         11  plastic drums will melt and add to the fire, as well

         12  as the slipperiness and the danger to anybody going

         13  down into the basement.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Kelty, I

         15  am just looking here at DEP increased disposal tips.

         16  It says do place cool cooking oil, poultry and meat

         17  fats in sealed, non-recyclable containers and

         18  discard with your regular garbage.

         19                 MR. KELTY: But the statement you just

         20  said is it doesn't say a metal container. When you

         21  put it in a metal container, Sanitation comes along

         22  and says that's a recyclable, you shouldn't have it

         23  in there.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You need

         25  clarification.
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          2                 MR. KELTY: That's correct.

          3                 Okay, as well as how it is going to

          4  be done, whether it be, as the Councilman said over

          5  here, there are laws on the books just now so you

          6  should understand. Currently the Fire Department

          7  goes in and we do the suppression units of the

          8  restaurants. Those restaurants are required to have

          9  their duct system cleaned once every, at least every

         10  three months they have to have a record taken of it.

         11                 They need to do it themselves, or

         12  they can have a service coming in.

         13                 If they are in violation, we can

         14  issue a notice of violation to them.

         15                 There are laws out there for

         16  cleaning, they have grease filters in their exhaust

         17  ducts. So if DEP is taking care of it as it is going

         18  into the air, there should be the same priority

         19  giving to the stuff that is going down into the

         20  basement and out.

         21                 The Fire Department should be brought

         22  into this picture, as well as letting them know

         23  there are grease operators in the basement, we do

         24  water leaks and stuff to that effect. If we see oil

         25  or grease in a basement, it should be a referral
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          2  over to DEP to get those inspectors out there, as

          3  well as we also do a sanitation. Sanitation is

          4  another eyes and ears for the City, both private and

          5  our sector, which is City DOT. They have numerous

          6  problems with picking up, I think it was Crown Waste

          7  and Flushing doesn't want to pick it up anymore,

          8  because the guy said he has changed his seals in

          9  that truck numerous times to prevent that oil from

         10  contaminating the ground, and he is running up a

         11  hill on it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, any

         13  questions?

         14                 Thank you very much. We have a

         15  question from Mr. Nelson and Mr. Sabini.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Just briefly,

         17  you are very crisp on the topic, obviously you are

         18  on top of it. And this may be more directed to

         19  Councilman Michels in that area.

         20                 I only half-jokingly referred to

         21  composting or alchemy, that was a total joke, but is

         22  there any positive, are there any positive

         23  properties in this grease that it can be used? The

         24  Pentagon can maybe blow up Iraq or something?

         25                 MR. KELTY: I can answer it. I think
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          2  the statement that they said before with soap, or

          3  something to that effect, should be something that

          4  we look at.

          5                 I don't know. I am not an engineer, I

          6  am not --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Any up side to

          8  this grease?

          9                 MR. KELTY: Well, I think the answer

         10  about what you said is having the statements with

         11  DEP and letting them   be the ones to decide what is

         12  going on with it. As it is now it is not working,

         13  and I heard the statement about the violations, I

         14  found, again, I don't represent the Fire Department

         15  today, I am just --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are not a

         17  grease expert either?

         18                 MR. KELTY: No. But I do know that

         19  when I do enforcement for them, they get one notice

         20  of violation from me, two notices, and then they go

         21  into Criminal Court and when they go into Criminal

         22  Court, the statements they come back to me, "I don't

         23  have all day to spend in Criminal Court". See, they

         24  learn from that lesson that they don't have a whole

         25  day to stay with their lawyer down there while they
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          2  go through the criminal process. They go to ECB

          3  Board, it's like let's make a deal, here, 200, 300,

          4  they get 479 -- we don't want that anymore. We want

          5  them to comply, and I think you are absolutely

          6  right, with the Notice of Violations, they should

          7  get a right to comply. After the second or third

          8  time, absolutely not. They should get a Criminal

          9  Court summons and they should go before a judge who

         10  makes the determination, because they will sit down

         11  there and they don't have the time to send their

         12  lawyer or somebody else down there.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right. Thank

         14  you.

         15                 Mr. Sabini.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman. I just wanted to give more illustrations,

         18  since the folks in the Community Board 7 have sort

         19  of real world experience, I can offer some of my own

         20  in response to Chairman Spigner's what this smells

         21  like.

         22                 In 1984 I was running a consulting

         23  business with a client on the upper east side, and

         24  every time he got out of this train on 86th Street

         25  you had this smell hit you, and it got worse and
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          2  worse, and I picked up a copy of Our Town and it

          3  talked about the mystery stench of the 86th Street

          4  subway station and they couldn't figure out what it

          5  was, and after a week they would write a story on

          6  it. And the smell was similar to that of the old Van

          7  Idersteine Fat Rendering Plant in Maspeth, that has

          8  mercifully closed down for the folks in Western

          9  Queens.

         10                 To make a long story short, after

         11  many weeks of Our Town, the local weekly on the East

         12  Side investigating this, they finally found out that

         13  the subway vents, because they don't drop straight

         14  down that bring air into the subway, they sort of

         15  panel off so that you can't actually drop something

         16  onto to the subway, that the inside of the subway

         17  vents were coated with this giant blob, and what the

         18  giant blob was from was a franchise popcorn place,

         19  mercifully now out of business, the franchise has

         20  gone bankrupt, and they would make popcorn in bulk

         21  in different flavors and throw the grease down the

         22  subway vent where it stuck to the walls of the vent

         23  and formed this giant blob that the MTA then had to

         24  go in with some solvent shooter to knock it off the

         25  walls and then scoop up and cart it away. But it was
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          2  a process that went over the course of a couple of

          3  weeks of trying to find out what it was and what was

          4  down there and where it was coming from, and it was

          5  something that you wouldn't forget if you smelled it

          6  every time you got off the train.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          9                 Council Member Marshall.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         11                 One other observation, one of the

         12  problems that we have is so much of the oil is on

         13  the sidewalk, and when we have rain or anything, it

         14  is extremely slippery and dangerous, and, of course,

         15  it really is unsightly, and never mind the smell,

         16  because we know the smell is atrocious. It is

         17  spilling it on the sidewalks there. Many times they

         18  don't have a trap and they go out to the catchbasins

         19  and they pour it down the catchbasins, but on the

         20  way out some spills and when they pour it in, they

         21  are not always careful, so it ends up on the

         22  sidewalk and it is pretty dangerous to people too.

         23  It is never cleaned up, you really need some strong

         24  chemical to clean it up which they never do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. KELTY: Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We appreciate

          4  you being here.

          5                 The next witnesses is Blaise

          6  Parascondola.

          7                 Come on, Blaise, let's get up here.

          8                 On a hearing like this, I couldn't

          9  possibly think of having a hearing without you

         10  testifying. It's nice to have you here.

         11                 You are representing the Plumbers

         12  Local 1 of New York.

         13                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: Yes, I am a Codes

         14  Consultant to Plumbers Local No. 1, which labor

         15  organization represents over 6,500 journeymen,

         16  plumbers, apprentices and helpers, and I also was a

         17  former Deputy Commissioner to the Department of

         18  Buildings, am somewhat familiar with some of the

         19  problems.

         20                 Our members who work for licensed

         21  plumbers, encounter these grease traps and their

         22  effects when they do job and alteration work, which

         23  is known in the trade as J and A work. And I think,

         24  not to elaborate, we have seen what these effects,

         25  we have these serious back-ups and many times it can
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          2  affect the sewage system, what the intent and

          3  problems of, you know, we can have in some case if

          4  it really gets into the sewer system, the back-up,

          5  you can have possible e.coli problems.

          6                 In any event, I really would like to

          7  confine my remarks to Intro. No. 830, because we

          8  realize that there is no question that there are

          9  present regulations in both the environmental

         10  protection code and the building code that relate to

         11  grease traps.

         12                 The use of licensed personnel to

         13  perform inspections has been mandated in the billing

         14  code for other items of equipment and fixtures. It

         15  was referred to by Mr. O'Brien. We had the

         16  maintenance contract for elevators. We also have

         17  quarterly inspection of elevators. One of the

         18  quarterly inspection of elevators have to be done by

         19  a licensed elevator company.

         20                 Of course, we have annual inspections

         21  of oil burners, and boilers, not only high pressure

         22  but low pressure boilers that have to be inspected.

         23                 We are trying to show that there is a

         24  need for, at the very least, a periodic inspection,

         25  I am not saying daily, for these grease traps.
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          2                 We have RPZs, the back-flow

          3  preventers, that have to be tested by a tester who

          4  works under a licensed plumber. It may be less than

          5  an annual inspection.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are not

          7  arguing for self inspections, are you?

          8                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: Self-inspections?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Where it is not

         10  done by the agency, it is done by hired personnel

         11  who would certify --

         12                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: Well, it could be

         13  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is that what you

         15  are arguing for?

         16                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: What I am saying is

         17  that the licensed personnel that would do these

         18  maintenance contracts, they are the ones that would

         19  be qualified to do it. They could see other

         20  problems.

         21                 By the way, the grease also affects

         22  the plumbing system, particularly now that we have

         23  the no hub cast iron waste pipes, of course the old

         24  lead joints would not be effective, because, you

         25  know, for other reasons we have done away with lead.
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          2  But the cast iron no hub pipes are affected by

          3  grease and you will have leaks through the system

          4  also, besides back-ups. So that these are the

          5  effects that our members see, and the scope and

          6  maintenance of these maintenance contracts, as was

          7  stated by Mr. O'Brien, would be up to the

          8  Commissioner of the Department of Environmental

          9  Protection. In another instance we have roof water

         10  tanks that are inspected, the domestic and potable

         11  water.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: See, the point

         13  is you should have qualified people inspecting the

         14  premises.

         15                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: And this provision

         16  about the --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think you made

         18  that point. The fact that they have qualified doing

         19  other inspections, I agree, that's very true.

         20                 Anything else?

         21                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: No, I think --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: -- That would sum

         25  up. And we would --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We appreciate

          3  you being here. Thank you --

          4                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: -- Support --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It was very good

          6  points.

          7                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It was good to

          9  have you here.

         10                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: We don't have any

         11  questions?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, Blaise, I

         13  understand you.

         14                 Now we have my namesake, and I don't

         15  know how she spells her name, Adeline Michaels.

         16                 MR. PARASCONDOLA: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is it

         18  M-i-c-h-a-e-l-s?

         19                 MS. MICHAELS: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Why do you have

         21  an A in your name?

         22                 I am always asked why don't I have an

         23  A in my name.

         24                 MS. MICHAELS: Every time I see you,

         25  you tell me the same thing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know. It is

          3  what we call a ten-year running gag.

          4                 Welcome. It's always nice to have you

          5  here. Especially if you are a concerned citizen of

          6  Bensonhurst.

          7                 MS. MICHAELS: I want to take the

          8  candy out of my mouth.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, fine.

         10                 MS. MICHAELS: Council members, my

         11  name is Adeline Michaels, President and Founder of

         12  Concerned Citizens of Bensonhurst, Incorporated, A

         13  member of the Citizens Advisory Committee of the

         14  Department of Environmental Protection Agency and

         15  Borough President Golden's Solid Waste Advisory

         16  Board and EPA Dredged Material Management Working

         17  Interest Group, plus a Community Board 11 member in

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 I have read the Local Laws 735, 736.

         20  As a citizen I bring your attention to a public

         21  health concern. Grease is a serious problem in

         22  Bensonhurst, Brooklyn in Community Board 11. We have

         23  258 food establishments in our district which has

         24  been rated for several years as the hotspot of the

         25  City of New York.
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          2                 At community meetings I have had the

          3  DEP representatives educate the people who attend at

          4  the community board, I have mentioned repeatedly the

          5  problems to the Board members and the Presidents to

          6  the Board of Trade.

          7                 A recent pilot program showed 179

          8  food establishments non-compliant. I warn the

          9  members that there would be follow-up inspections

         10  and fines. Too often in the past the food

         11  establishments have waited for the inspectors to

         12  leave, and did nothing to correct the problem of

         13  grease. Home-owners complain of sewer back-ups.

         14                 Food establishments took their grease

         15  to the corner store and we have caught several. Our

         16  street had a new sewer line replaced, the grease was

         17  clogged over 100 feet from the corner to the

         18  manhole. The sewer was replaced due to a break at

         19  the other end of the street. The corner food

         20  establishment was shown from the engineer what he

         21  was doing and was supposedly fined.

         22                 Later I found he was only warned and

         23  continued the same way. My attention to the problem

         24  came when the other business members who shared the

         25  community basement, had property damage to their
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          2  storage property from the neglected overflow of

          3  grease, rodents, roaches and unsanitary conditions

          4  as to food storage was constantly reported to the

          5  DEP and the Board of Health due to the grease

          6  problem.

          7                 The policy of the DEP is not to put a

          8  business out of business, irregardless of if they

          9  don't comply.

         10                 This occurred with several food

         11  establishments prior to the one previous to the

         12  existing food establishment now serving the public.

         13  I called many times and finally, through the

         14  Citizens' Committee, have we succeeded in bringing

         15  the attention to the City Council. The fines are not

         16  high enough. I hope you succeed in mandating that

         17  private companies collect the grease.

         18                 I was sick to my stomach to see

         19  chicken hit the floor and placed back with the other

         20  food.

         21                 Random checked food establishments,

         22  notice how they wipe the knives with unsanitary

         23  dirty clothes, look at their aprons and then handle

         24  money. The public health is of little concern, too

         25  many are only concerned with bringing in the money.
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          2                 We also need to have health

          3  examinations on service help, gloves are not worn

          4  when handling food and then served to the public.

          5                 I urge this City Council to take my

          6  concerns to the table.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Adeline, thank

          9  you very much for being here.

         10                 MS. MICHAELS: You're welcome.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are very

         12  well thought out. You may be the last, but you are

         13  certainly not the least. You are one of the best,

         14  and I appreciate it, and I always appreciate you

         15  coming in before us.

         16                 MS. MICHAELS: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you so

         18  much. Give our best to the good Borough President.

         19                 MS. MICHAELS: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No other

         21  witnesses, the hearing is adjourned.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 6th day of February 2001.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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